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ANGLE is developing highly 
innovative non-invasive  
cancer diagnostic products  
to improve the detection  
and treatment of cancer



A very large market
The Parsortix cancer diagnostic business has great 
commercial potential because the level of further 
technological development, investment requirements  
and timescales are all comparatively very low to secure  
a patent protected position addressing a very large market.
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ANGLE is a specialist medical diagnostic 
company with pioneering products in 
cancer diagnostics.
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The Parsortix GEN3 Cassette is able to capture 
circulating tumour cells in cancer patient blood. 
It works with a variety of cancers including prostate, 
breast, colorectal, lung and renal.

In addition, the Parsortix system does not require the 
use of antibodies and is capable of harvesting circulating 
tumour cells for molecular analysis.

Parsortix
Medical diagnostics

Separation of rare cells from blood. Major opportunity  
to develop a patent protected cancer diagnostic device 
providing a step forward in cancer treatment.
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Unique capabilities

Personalised cancer treatment
In addition to the Parsortix system’s ability to capture  
and count very rare circulating tumour cells (CTCs) 
from the blood of cancer patients, in January 2013  
we developed a process for recovering captured cells 
from the Parsortix cassette for molecular analysis in  
a process we call harvesting.
 
The Parsortix system’s ability to harvest cells for 
analysis is a major advantage and key competitive 
differentiator. Leading cancer research centres and 
hospitals in discussions with the Company have 
all emphasised the importance of this harvesting 
capability in meeting a key unmet medical need.
 
In May 2013, we successfully automated this harvesting capability  
so that the Parsortix system can harvest captured CTCs using a  
new component and software control process integrated into the 
Parsortix machine.

Third party testing of the Parsortix system on colorectal cancer patient 
blood has since announced successful results. The Parsortix system 
comprising the PR1 machine and the GEN3 cassette was tested on  
cancer patient blood by the University of Surrey Oncology Group  
(Surrey) and has been found to be performing well.

The Parsortix system is working 
well. It is simple to use and is 
proving highly sensitive in its 
ability to harvest circulating 
tumour cells from patient blood. 
The cells are harvested without 
antibody capture so there is huge 
potential as a liquid biopsy.”

Professor Hardev Pandha
Head of the University of Surrey’s  
Oncology Group in the Faculty of  
Health and Medical Sciences
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The Parsortix automated machine is able to capture, identify and harvest circulating 
tumour cells.

The Parsortix automated machine can  
be configured either for the counting and 
identification of circulating tumour cells  
(CTCs) in the blood, or for the capture and 
harvesting of the CTCs from the blood for  
further molecular analysis.
 
The appointment of Cogent enables ANGLE 
to increase manufacturing volumes to meet 
expected demand, initially for the research 
market and then for the clinical market. Cogent 
will provide robust manufacturing services and 
supply chain management in accordance with 
the necessary quality assurance methods for 
electro-mechanical products destined for critical 
markets such as healthcare. 
 
The Company’s out-sourcing strategy continues 
to be the best way to deliver the roll out of 
Parsortix, without the associated investment  
and running costs of undertaking these activities 
in house.

Manufacturer appointed
We appointed Cogent Technology 
Limited (“Cogent”) in 2013 to 
manufacture the Parsortix automated 
machine. The consumable for the 
system, the Parsortix cassette, will 
continue to be produced by specialist 
nano-manufacturer thinXXS.

The appointment of a specialist, 
larger scale manufacturer with 
the necessary quality systems to 
support regulatory authorisation 
is an important step towards 
positioning ANGLE so that it is 
capable of meeting substantial 
market demand in the future. 
We have already initiated the roll 
out of Parsortix into the research 
market and look forward to 
continuing the roll out into the 
clinical market once regulatory 
authorisations have been 
received.”

Andrew Newland
Chief Executive
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Ground-breaking potential

Widespread demand
Through harvesting, the Parsortix system now has the 
potential to provide users with cancer cells for analysis 
from a simple blood test – a form of “liquid biopsy”.  
This opens the way for the cells to be analysed to 
identify the specific mutations of the individual 
patient’s cancer using a wide range of genetic and 
molecular techniques. This then offers the prospect of 
personalised medicine with drugs and other treatment 
selected specifically to address the individual patient’s 
own cancer with better patient outcomes and lower 
costs of treatment.

We have seen widespread demand from researchers and clinicians  
for CTCs to be made available in a test tube after isolation from  
blood. It is testimony to the versatility of our separation technology 
that we have been able to introduce and automate this capability in 
such a short time. The consequent prospects for our Parsortix sales  
are significant. 

ANGLE has also appointed two world-leading Scientific Advisers to 
help guide the Parsortix non-invasive cancer diagnostic technology  
to market. They provide crucial medical knowledge, market 
understanding and established relationships with key customers.
 
Professor Adrian Newland CBE (no relation to ANGLE’s Chief 
Executive) is Professor of Haematology at Barts Health NHS Trust  
and Queen Mary University of London. He is Director of Pathology  
for the Trust and is Clinical Director of the North East London  
Cancer Network.
 
Professor Ashok Venkitaraman holds the Ursula Zoellner Professorship  
of Cancer Research at the University of Cambridge, and is Director of  
the Medical Research Council’s Cancer Cell Unit and Joint Director of  
the Medical Research Council Hutchison Cancer Research Centre.
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We see great promise in the Parsortix system  
with the possibility that it may help broaden 
our understanding of cancer patient blood borne 
biomarkers which may in turn eventually help us  
guide and improve therapy. The major attractions 
for us are the potential for the system to deliver 
an increased range and number of CTCs along with 
simplicity of execution. Initial positive results have 
resulted in the inclusion of the Parsortix device in  
our ongoing efforts to deliver personalised medicine.”

Dr Ged Brady
Genomics Group Leader and Deputy, Clinical & Experimental 
Pharmacology, Cancer Research UK’s Paterson Institute for  
Cancer Research

Cell marker (epitope) independent

Unlike the existing FDA approved system,  
the Parsortix system does not rely on the  
CTC cells expressing specific genes for isolation 
for antibody binding. This means cells, such as 
mesenchymal CTCs, can be captured and false 
negatives reduced.

Applicable for all solid cancers

Unlike the existing FDA approved system,  
the Parsortix system is applicable for all solid 
cancers including those with weak or no cell 
markers. The Parsortix system can be used 
without modification with a wide range 
of cancers including prostate, breast, lung, 
colorectal, pancreatic, renal and ovarian cancers. 

Potential to capture intact, undamaged CTCs

Cells which are captured by the Parsortix 
system have not been subjected to antibody 
binding or other chemical reaction as part of 
the capture process. This offers the potential for 
a fuller medical understanding of the patient’s 
metastatic cancer characteristics.

Cells can be harvested for molecular analysis

The Parsortix system is biomarker compatible. 
CTCs captured by the Parsortix system can be 
harvested for analysis of the cancer mutations. 
This “liquid biopsy” from a simple blood test 
enables the potential for personalised cancer 
treatment with patients receiving drugs which 
directly target their own cancer.

“Plug and play”

The Parsortix system is easy to use and can be 
used with whole blood samples, direct from a 
simple blood test, without any pre-processing  
of the blood such as red blood cell removal.

This makes the process easier and more cost 
effective, whilst ensuring unnecessary loss of 
target cells is reduced.

Operationally versatile

The Parsortix system can handle blood  
volumes of less than 1ml to over 10ml enabling 
applications that the FDA approved system 
cannot handle.

Key features of  
the Parsortix system

2
2

3
3

4
4

5
5

6
6

 

Dr Ged Brady
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Chairman’s Statement

Introduction
I am delighted to report that during the year, major progress was made 
in the automation of ANGLE’s Parsortix non-invasive cancer diagnostic 
system. 

Results
Planned investment principally relating to Parsortix was increased to £2.5 
million (2012: £1.7 million). This comprised operating costs of £1.6 million 
(2012: £1.7 million) and capitalised expenditure of £0.9 million (2012: £nil).

The loss for the year of £1.0 million (2012: loss £2.7 million) reflected the 
operating costs of £1.6 million (2012: £1.7 million) offset by a fair value 
gain on non-controlled investments of £0.5 million (2012: fair value loss 
£1.3 million) and other income of £0.1 million (2012: £0.3 million). 

The cash balance was £1.8 million at 30 April 2013 (30 April 2012:  
£1.1 million).

Share issues 
We are grateful to our loyal shareholder base for their continued support 
during the year. Fundraisings completed during the year raised £3.3 million 
to support the development of Parsortix and strengthen the Company’s 
balance sheet.

Business development 
ANGLE made substantial progress with its Parsortix non-invasive cancer 
diagnostic system during the year.

The system can capture and identify circulating tumour cells (CTCs) in 
cancer patient blood. CTCs are shed into the bloodstream by primary cancer 
tumours and are the cause of secondary cancers. They exist in the blood of 
cancer patients in numbers that are sometimes as low as one cell in a billion 
and are very difficult to isolate. 

Parsortix’s ability to capture and identify CTCs in cancer patient blood 
should enable a simple blood test to allow:

• prognostic assessment of patients to predict the likely course of their 
cancer, enabling a more informed consideration of their treatment 
options;

• monitoring of cancer patients during treatment to assess their progress 
and determine which treatments are likely to be effective for them;

• post-treatment monitoring of patients in remission for early detection  
of potential relapse, with the potential to improve treatment success 
rates for secondary cancers.

Highlights
Development of Parsortix PR1 system completed

• Successful development of the automated Parsortix 
PR1 medical device and the patented GEN3 
cassette for the capture and identification of 
circulating tumour cells (CTCs) from patient blood

• Extensive testing of the Parsortix system completed 
leading to release of the system for evaluation by 
targeted key opinion leaders in the fields of cancer 
diagnosis and treatment

• Developed and automated a new process for the 
harvesting of intact CTCs for DNA analysis. The 
resulting “liquid biopsy” addresses a major new 
market for personalised cancer patient care

Medtech operational capability strengthened

• Board of Directors strengthened with the 
appointment of Brian Howlett, who brings a 
deep understanding of the medical diagnostics 
market including product development, regulatory 
authorisations, major corporate deals and go-to-
market strategies

• Scientific Advisers, Professor Adrian Newland 
CBE (no relation to ANGLE’s Chief Executive) and 
Professor Ashok Venkitaraman appointed to help 
guide the Parsortix non-invasive cancer diagnostic 
system to market. They provide crucial medical 
knowledge, market understanding and established 
relationships with key customers

Financial

• Equity issues during the year raising £3.3 million  
to support investment in Parsortix

• Loss for the year of £1.0 million (2012: loss  
£2.7 million)

• Cash balance at 30 April 2013 of £1.8 million  
(30 April 2012: £1.1 million)

Continued progress subsequent to the year end

• University of Surrey Oncology Group completed 
successful third party validation of Parsortix 
technology for colorectal cancer. The Parsortix 
system demonstrates twice the sensitivity of 
established techniques for CTC capture 

• Cancer Research UK’s Paterson Institute for Cancer 
Research identified key operational advantages for 
the Parsortix system and has included Parsortix in 
its ongoing efforts to deliver personalised medicine 

• Plan developed for regulatory authorisation to allow 
the initiation of clinical sales in the European Union 
(CE Mark) by the end of 2013 and in the United 
States (FDA 510(k)) in mid 2014 

• Specialist, larger scale manufacturer appointed to 
manufacture the PR1 machine with the necessary 
quality systems and capacity to support the 
roll out into the clinical market once regulatory 
authorisations have been received

Garth Selvey
Chairman
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During the year, the development and automation of the Parsortix PR1 
medical device and GEN3 consumable cassette was completed.

The capability of the system was greatly enhanced through the 
development and then automation of a new process for the harvesting  
of CTCs for DNA analysis. The resulting “liquid biopsy” addresses a major 
new market for personalised cancer treatment.

Extensive testing of the Parsortix system was successfully completed, 
leading to its release to ANGLE’s research partners, the University of  
Surrey Oncology Group and the Paterson Institute for Cancer Research. 
Both partners have now worked extensively with the system.

The Parsortix system has also been released for evaluation by key opinion 
leaders at other major global centres of excellence in cancer diagnosis and 
treatment. 

Subsequent to the year end, University of Surrey Oncology Group 
completed successful third party validation of Parsortix technology for 
colorectal cancer in which the Parsortix system demonstrated twice the 
sensitivity of established techniques for CTC capture; and the Paterson 
Institute for Cancer Research identified key operational advantages for the 
Parsortix system and has included Parsortix in its ongoing efforts to deliver 
personalised medicine.

Also subsequent to the year end, a plan has been developed to secure 
regulatory authorisation for clinical sales in the European Union (CE Mark) 
by the end of 2013 and in the United States (FDA 510(k) procedure) in mid 
2014. This authorisation will, from mid 2014 onwards, allow the initiation 
of clinical sales, where the Parsortix PR1 system will be used in patient 
treatment as well as research.

A specialist, larger scale manufacturer has been appointed to manufacture 
the PR1 machine with the necessary quality systems and capacity to 
support the roll out into the clinical market once regulatory authorisations 
have been received.

The importance of the medical need that Parsortix is seeking to address is 
highlighted in the recent Lancet* article profiling Professor Caroline Dive, 
Head of the Group at Paterson with which ANGLE is working and winner 
of the 2012 Pasteur-Weizmann/Servier Prize, where she was reported as 
having “set her sights on the holy grail of cancer biomarker research: simple 
blood tests that can indicate how aggressive a tumour is, which therapy will 
be most effective, and show how the tumour is responding to treatment.” 
Professor Dive added that “We will be taking big steps forward with 
personalised medicine for cancer patients.”

In a highly successful year, ANGLE not only completed 
the key development phase for its Parsortix system for 
capturing CTCs but also developed a new capability  
to harvest intact CTCs from patient blood for DNA 
analysis. The Parsortix system has already been well 
received by our research partners and is now being 
evaluated by key opinion leaders in the fields of cancer 
diagnosis and treatment. ANGLE is now focused on 
securing regulatory authorisations to allow it to address 
the multi-billion pound clinical market for the treatment 
of cancer patients.”

Scientific Advisers
During the year, two world-leading scientific advisers were appointed  
to help guide the Parsortix non-invasive cancer diagnostic technology  
to market. They provide crucial medical knowledge, market understanding 
and established relationships with key customers.

Professor Adrian Newland CBE (no relation to ANGLE’s Chief Executive) 
is Professor of Haematology at Barts Health NHS Trust and Queen Mary 
University of London. He is Director of Pathology for the Trust and is 
Clinical Director of the North East London Cancer Network.

Professor Ashok Venkitaraman holds the Ursula Zoellner Professorship  
of Cancer Research at the University of Cambridge, and is Director of  
the Medical Research Council’s Cancer Cell Unit and Joint Director of  
the Medical Research Council Hutchison Cancer Research Centre.

Board of Directors strengthened
I would like to take this opportunity to welcome Brian Howlett to the 
ANGLE Board. Brian brings a deep understanding of the medical diagnostic 
market, including product development, regulatory authorisations, major 
corporate deals and go-to-market strategies.

Other assets
In addition to Parsortix, ANGLE has a significant non-core investment in 
Geomerics, which is a computer games middleware and computer graphics 
company operating independently from ANGLE. Geomerics offers computer 
games publishers the only dynamic real-time lighting solution for their 
games. Geomerics is well positioned for growth with the imminent launch 
of the next generation games consoles (PlayStation4 and Xbox One) and 
new opportunities opening on mobile platforms, and it has already been 
adopted by key reference customers as their lighting solution for next 
generation games.

Outlook 
In a highly successful year, ANGLE not only completed the key development 
phase for its Parsortix system for capturing circulating tumour cells (CTCs) 
but also developed a new capability to harvest intact CTCs from patient 
blood for DNA analysis. The Parsortix system has already been well received 
by our research partners and is now being evaluated by key opinion leaders 
in the fields of cancer diagnosis and treatment. ANGLE is now focused on 
securing regulatory authorisations to allow it to address the multi-billion 
pound clinical market for the treatment of cancer patients.

Garth Selvey
Chairman
4 October 2013

* The Lancet Volume 381, Issue 9861, Page 107, 12 January 2013
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Chief Executive’s Statement

Milestone Progress Target Completion Date

Validation of initial findings  Completed 

Establish collaborations with leading Cancer Centres  Completed 

Capture CTCs in cancer patient blood  Completed 

Optimise GEN2 separation cassette  Completed 

Establish world leading Scientific Advisory Board  In progress 

Design automated separation instrument  Completed 

Design GEN3 separation cassette for research purposes  Completed 

Testing of PR1 automated instrument and  Completed 
GEN3 cassette

Initiate sales for research purposes  Completed 

Place Parsortix system with Key Opinion Leaders  In progress 

University of Surrey 3rd party validation with   Completed 
colorectal cancer patient blood

Paterson Institute for Cancer Research 3rd party  In progress 
validation with lung cancer patient blood

Advance discussions with Corporate Partners  In progress 

Continue and expand sales for research purposes  In progress 

Studies to support FDA and CE Mark submission  31 October 2013 

CE Mark regulatory authorisation for clinical sales  31 December 2013 

Submission for FDA authorisation for clinical sales   31 March 2014 
in the United States

Corporate deal / distribution partner finalised  30 June 2014 

Target for clinical product launch and sales  30 September 2014 

Key value triggers

Parsortix

Andrew Newland
Chief Executive

The cancer research market is estimated  
to be worth £250 million per annum.

£250 million

£8 billion
The much larger market for the treatment 
of cancer patients is estimated to be worth 
over £8 billion per annum globally.
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Over the last year we have developed the Parsortix  
system to harvest cells for analysis, which is a  
major advantage and key competitive differentiator.  
The Parsortix system now has the potential to provide  
a “liquid biopsy” from a simple blood test. We hope  
this will play a key role in the development of  
personalised cancer treatment in the future.”

Introduction
During the year, ANGLE made major progress with its Parsortix non-invasive 
cancer diagnostic system.

Highly challenging technical development objectives were met and the 
automated medical device and consumable were both successfully delivered 
within tight timescales and within the planned budget.

Parsortix cell separation (91%)
Medical device development
During the year, in collaboration with a specialist engineering company, 
ANGLE designed, developed and produced the Parsortix PR1 medical device 
to automate the Parsortix cell separation technology for capturing and 
identifying circulating tumour cells (CTCs) in patient blood. 

Also during the year, in collaboration with a high precision microfluidics 
manufacturing company, ANGLE re-designed the Parsortix GEN3 
consumable cassette to make the Parsortix system easy to use and fully 
compatible with standard laboratory practice. This included the integration 
of a thin film bonded surface, development of a new clamping unit and re-
development into a microscope slide format.

These two major developments combined to provide an automated 
Parsortix system, comprising a medical device and a consumable, for the 
capture and identification of CTCs. This combined system was extensively 
tested during the year and numerous refinements and improvements 
developed until the system was considered sufficiently robust to release  
to ANGLE’s research partners in December 2012.

The Parsortix system thus developed has resulted in a plug and play  
system where the blood sample in a standard blood collection tube is 
simply attached to the PR1 device, the GEN3 consumable is easily loaded 
and the process of separation is automated.

Following the blood separation process, captured cells can easily be 
viewed using standard microscopy techniques. The machine will also allow 
standard cell identification techniques (such as immuno-staining of cells) 
to be run automatically by the machine allowing cells to be stained inside 
the consumable so that they can be viewed easily on the user’s existing 
microscopes and visually counted.

We believe the Parsortix system offers the potential for a simple,  
effective and affordable CTC product.

Parsortix CTC harvesting
During the year, the Parsortix capability was greatly enhanced by the 
development of a capability to harvest cells captured from patient blood  
in order that they can be subjected to DNA and other molecular analysis. 
This new capability has many benefits as it allows the use of a wide range 
of existing analytical techniques to investigate the patient’s cancer.

The Parsortix system benefits from being based on a physical capture 
technology, which can be run without pre-treatment of the blood sample 
or the use of antibody or other chemical bonding technology. As a result, 
the Parsortix system has the potential to capture intact, undamaged, living 
CTCs. The new harvesting process retains this cell integrity and potentially 
enables a liquid biopsy of cancer. This offers the potential for a major step 
forward from current solid biopsies, which obtain cancer cells for analysis  
by surgical removal of parts of the solid tumour.

The advantages of a liquid biopsy of cancer are that as a simple blood test, 
unlike a traditional “solid biopsy”, it does not require surgical intervention 
to obtain the sample and:

• a liquid biopsy from a standard blood test can be repeated as often  
as required whereas it is not desirable or feasible to undertake repeated 
solid biopsies by surgical removal;

• there are many cancers (for example, pancreatic cancer, brain cancer, 
lung cancer) which may be difficult to access for solid biopsy and others 
(for example, prostate cancer) where there is a risk of infection with  
a solid biopsy;

• the cells presented by Parsortix liquid biopsy are intact individual 
cells whereas solid biopsy cells have to be subjected to physical and 
biochemical disruption to separate them from other cells that are 
unavoidably collected during the excision.
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Chief Executive’s Statement
Continued

Once Sony and Microsoft announced the next generation game platforms 
of PS4 and Xbox One respectively, sales rapidly picked up again. Enlighten 
has now become recognised by leading customers as the best lighting 
solution for the next generation platforms and sales are significantly up  
on the prior year. 

Novocellus (92%) (IVF embryo viability)
During the year, ANGLE’s partner for Novocellus, ORIGIO was acquired 
by a much larger company, The Cooper Companies, Inc. (Cooper). Cooper 
merged ORIGIO with another business and rationalised its development 
activities including withdrawing from its partnership with Novocellus.

Novocellus retains all the EmbryoSure® intellectual property rights 
unencumbered and these extend until October 2027. ANGLE remains 
confident of EmbryoSure®’s clinical utility in increasing successful 
pregnancy rates through the selection of the most developmentally 
competent embryos for IVF transfer and that there is a major unmet 
medical need in this area. Novocellus’ product EmbryoSure® offers the 
potential for increased pregnancy rates in IVF and reduced health risks.

There is a range of options for commercialising EmbryoSure®, which we will 
consider in due course. However, ANGLE’s primary focus both financially 
and in management time is Parsortix.

Other receivables 
During the year, ANGLE successfully collected the outstanding balance in 
respect of the sale of its investment in Acolyte Biomedica. 

Management services 
The Company continues to deliver a number of management services 
contracts and during the year these made a modest contribution to the 
Group’s overheads.

Percentage shareholdings based on issued share capital as at 30 April 2013.

Securing regulatory approval
In May 2013 we appointed the specialist regulatory 
company, Medical Device Management (MDM), to 
manage the process of obtaining regulatory authorisations 
for the clinical use of the Parsortix cell separation system. 
MDM is focused entirely on the medical devices sector 
and has expertise worldwide in quality assurance systems, 
regulatory submissions and compliance.
 

Our research partner, the Paterson Institute for Cancer Research, is a  
world leader in working with CTCs to assess the cancer mutations on  
the CTC and to devise personalised treatment for the patient. 

Subsequent to the year end, we successfully automated the harvesting 
capability and integrated it into the system. The Parsortix PR1 system 
available for research use combines cell capture and identification with  
the potential to harvest the CTCs for DNA analysis.

The Parsortix cell separation system is a patented platform technology, 
which applies to all types of cells. Recent success in automating the  
medical device and achieving recovery of CTCs from the system may  
also potentially be deployed in the capture and harvesting of other types  
of cells such as foetal cells in maternal blood.

Other assets
Geomerics (31%) (computer games middleware and computer graphics) 
ANGLE has a non-core investment in Geomerics, a computer games 
middleware and computer graphics company. Geomerics is a stand-alone 
business with its own management and board of directors.

Geomerics sells Enlighten middleware lighting software to computer games 
developers. Enlighten is the only dynamic real-time lighting solution for 
computer games available in the market. As a result, computer games which 
incorporate Enlighten are much more visually realistic and provide a better 
player experience. Battlefield3, Electronic Arts’ game using Enlighten won 
Game of the Year in 2011 and was EA’s fastest selling game ever. Lighting 
within the game was a key feature.

High end computer games run on a variety of platforms including PC, 
PlayStation (PS3) and Xbox (Xbox360). Both the PlayStation and Xbox 
platforms were subject to upgrade to next generation systems. There 
was speculation as to the features of these new systems and, until the 
specifications were shared with the computer games publishers, the 
publishers were not able to progress their new games and consequently  
did not purchase Enlighten for a period. During this period, ANGLE provided 
£0.3 million additional funding support to Geomerics.
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Summary
We are now moving into a period of major commercial development for 
the Parsortix system. Good progress has already been achieved against the 
objectives set at the beginning of the current financial year which were:

• Placing the Parsortix system with a number of key opinion leaders in 
the fields of cancer diagnosis and treatment, to evaluate potential 
applications and secure key references;

• Obtaining third party independent validation of the Parsortix system 
and demonstrating the application of Parsortix for particular cancer 
conditions;

• Selecting a manufacturing partner and establishing necessary quality 
control systems;

• Establishing and executing a plan for regulatory authorisation for the 
product to be used in the clinical market;

• Securing CE Mark authorisation for clinical sales in the European Union;
• Submitting an application to the FDA for authorisation for clinical sales  

in the United States;
• Developing a market entry plan for Parsortix for selected cancer 

applications at targeted centres of excellence in the European Union  
and the United States.

Andrew Newland
Chief Executive
4 October 2013

We are very pleased to have put in place a plan for 
securing regulatory authorisations in Europe and the 
United States. MDM are experts in this field and it  
is reassuring that they have expressed confidence  
in our ability to secure the authorisations needed to  
enter the multi-billion dollar market for the clinical  
use of our cell separating technology.”

MDM’s initial analysis has confirmed ANGLE’s 
expectation of securing regulatory authorisation in 
the EU by the end of the current calendar year and 
making a regulatory submission to the FDA in the 
US in early 2014.
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Financial Review

Introduction
The funds raised during the year have more than covered the increased 
investment expenditure of £2.5 million during the year, enabling significant 
progress in the development of the Parsortix system. Key achievements 
during the year included the development of the Parsortix PR1 medical 
device and the design of the GEN3 consumable cassette, development  
of a new capability to harvest CTCs, successful third party validation  
by the University of Surrey Oncology Group and the Paterson Institute 
for Cancer Research including Parsortix in its ongoing efforts to deliver 
personalised medicine.

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Planned expenditure principally relating to Parsortix was £1.6 million  
(2012: £1.7 million) with a further £0.9 million (2012: £nil) capitalised  
as an Intangible Asset on the Statement of Financial Position. Although 
shown as an operating cost and as contributing to the loss for the year,  
this expenditure represents investment in research and development and  
we have been extremely pleased with the progress made by Parsortix as  
a consequence. 

The fair value gain of £0.5 million (2012: loss £1.3 million) arose from 
certain debt investment loans which carried preferential conversion terms 
and rights.

Management services revenues account for the majority of the Group’s 
revenues of £0.9 million (2012: £1.3 million). Revenues in this business area 
reduced as contracts completed and were not replaced. Existing contracts 
are progressing and as they are at least three year duration contracts, there 
is clear visibility of future income. Operating costs for the year were £1.0 
million (2012: £1.2 million) and the business generated a loss of £0.1 million 
(2012: profit £0.1 million) although there was a contribution to overheads. 
The loss reflected restructuring costs and delay in one of the contracts.

The Group made a loss before tax of £1.0 million (2012: loss £2.7 million) 
resulting in a basic and diluted loss per share of 2.54p (2012: 7.88p).

Financial Highlights
Net funds raised during the year of £3.3 million (2012: 
£2.4 million) to support investment in Parsortix

Planned investment principally relating to Parsortix  
was increased to £2.5 million (2012: £1.7 million).  
This comprised operating costs of £1.6 million  
(2012: £1.7 million) and capitalised expenditure  
of £0.9 million (2012: £nil)

Fair value gain on non-controlled investments of  
£0.5 million (2012: fair value loss of £1.3 million)

Management services revenues £0.9 million  
(2012: £1.3 million)

Loss before tax of £1.0 million (2012: loss £2.7 million)

Cash balance at 30 April 2013 £1.8 million (30 April 
2012: £1.1 million)

Ian Griffiths
Finance Director
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Statement of Financial Position
Non-controlled investments are held on the statement of financial position 
at a value of £4.0 million (2012: £2.6 million). The equity investment is  
held as a non-current asset unchanged at £2.4 million (2012: £2.4 million). 
The debt investment is repayable and is held as a current asset at £1.6 
million (2012: £nil). New investment accounted for £0.3 million of this 
increase. The remaining £1.3 million came from reclassifications of £0.5 
million and £0.2 million from trade and other receivables and non-current 
assets respectively, a fair value gain of £0.5 million and interest. 

Parsortix product development expenditure of £0.9 million (2012: £nil) was 
capitalised during the period in accordance with IAS 38 Intangible Assets. 

Non-current liabilities comprise convertible and other loan arrangements 
for controlled investments and there is no recourse to ANGLE.

Trade and other payables were unchanged at £0.6 million (2012:  
£0.6 million).

Cash
The Group ended the year with a cash balance of £1.8 million (2012:  
£1.1 million).

The Group completed fund raisings during the year of £3.3 million net of 
costs (2012: £2.4 million). Funding was raised to progress Parsortix through 
key milestones.

There was a cash realisation from the investment portfolio in the year  
of £0.2 million in respect of the sale of Acolyte Biomedica (2012: £nil). 

The ongoing financing strategy is to use non-dilutive sources of funding 
where possible including: trade sales of Group investments; cash generation 
from sales of the Parsortix research product; selective deals with 
pharmaceuticals and medtech companies giving them a license or other 
rights to the Parsortix technology for a particular application; and securing 
grants to cover part of the development costs for the product.

Summary
The Group is carefully executing its business plan so that business  
activities are in line with the available cash resources. Good progress has 
been made against key milestones and the Directors believe that CE Mark 
regulatory authorisation to allow sales for clinical use in Europe will be 
achieved by the end of 2013. This will be a major step forward enabling 
the development of significant commercial arrangements with major 
pharmaceuticals and medtech companies to deploy the Parsortix system. 

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate 
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future as detailed in 
Note 1.4.

Ian Griffiths
Finance Director
4 October 2013

The Group has significantly increased its expenditure  
on Parsortix as we move from product development into 
product launch for the research market and obtaining 
regulatory authorisations for the clinical market.”
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Board of Directors

3.2.1.

1. Garth R Selvey, Chairman
Garth Selvey has a BSc in Physics and Electronics Engineering from the 
University of Manchester and has spent thirty six years in the computer 
industry with technical, product, sales and marketing roles. He became 
Managing Director of TIS Applications Ltd in 1984 and a main board 
director of TIS Ltd prior to its acquisition by Misys in 1989. He organised 
the management buyout of the social housing division of Misys and became 
Group Chief Executive of Comino Group plc when it floated on AIM in 
1997. Comino moved to a full listing in 1999 where he remained until its 
successful public sale to Civica plc in February 2006. Garth joined ANGLE  
as a Non-executive Director in September 2006.

2. Andrew D W Newland, Chief Executive
Andrew Newland is the founder and Chief Executive of ANGLE plc. For 
over twenty five years, he has specialised in building technology-based 
businesses based on strong intellectual property and for the last fifteen 
years he has been Chairman or on the Board of several specialist medical 
technology companies. Andrew has an MA in Engineering Science from 
the University of Cambridge, and is a qualified Chartered Accountant. 
After working with the engineering conglomerate, TI plc, he worked for 
KPMG from 1982 to 1994; from 1985 to 1987 he was based in the US 
as a manager providing corporate finance and business advice to high 
technology firms in the area around Route 128, Boston, Massachusetts. 
During this time, he led KPMG’s involvement in the IPO of the medical 
technology company Cardio Data Inc. From 1987 to 1994 he worked 
for KPMG in the UK with responsibility for establishing KPMG’s UK and 
European High Technology Practices and High Technology Consulting 
Group. 

Andrew founded ANGLE in 1994. Together with ANGLE’s senior 
management team, Andrew has co-founded and led eleven technology 
companies in partnership with world class research organisations, both 
in the UK and the US. Andrew has been instrumental in developing and 
then delivering the business proposition for these companies, building 
management teams, raising finance and securing revenues. 

In 1999, Andrew led the team that founded the medical diagnostic 
company, Acolyte Biomedica. Acolyte was the first ever spin-out of dstl 
Porton Down, which specialised in rapid diagnosis of MRSA the ‘hospital 
super-bug’. Andrew chaired the company for several years and successfully 
led the company through three major rounds of venture capital investment. 
Andrew also founded Provexis, the first ever spin-out of Rowett Institute, 
Europe’s leading nutrition research institute. Andrew chaired the Board of 
Provexis, a specialist nutraceutical company with a heart-health product, 
through to its successful flotation in 2005. 

Andrew was a founder and is currently chairman of ANGLE’s major medical 
diagnostic businesses, Novocellus and Parsortix.

3. Ian F Griffiths, Finance Director 
Ian Griffiths is the Finance Director of ANGLE plc. He has specialised in 
technology commercialisation for over 20 years and is an expert on the 
development and growth of new technology based businesses. Ian has a 
BSc in Mathematics with Management Applications from Brunel University 
and is qualified as a chartered accountant. For seven years he worked for 
KPMG, initially in accountancy, then in management consulting within 
KPMG’s High Technology Consulting Group where he specialised in financial 
modelling, business planning, corporate finance, market development and 
strategy work. He joined ANGLE in 1995. 

As well as leading the finance function at ANGLE plc, he has been closely 
involved with the development and delivery of the UK, US and Middle East 
Consulting and Management businesses and in developing new Ventures 
both third party and ANGLE’s own. Ian has been heavily involved in the 
start-up phase and also the ongoing development of ANGLE’s own ventures 
by working closely with management on business plans, financial and 
operational management, fund raising and commercial aspects, including 
for both medical and physical sciences companies. He is currently leading 
the financial development of ANGLE’s major medical diagnostic businesses, 
Novocellus and Parsortix and its computer gaming business Geomerics.

4. David W Quysner, CBE Non-executive Director
David Quysner has an MA from the University of Cambridge. His career 
spans more than 40 years of investing in technology companies, initially 
with 3i and subsequently at Abingworth, an international investment group 
dedicated to the life sciences and healthcare sectors. He is currently the 
Chairman of RCM Technology Trust plc and a Director of Foresight 2 VCT 
plc, Private Equity Investor plc and Medical Research Council Technology 
Limited. David was Chairman of the British Venture Capital Association  
in 1996/97 and was awarded a CBE in 2008 for services to the Venture 
Capital industry.
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4. 5.

ANGLE has an experienced 
and highly committed senior 
management team.

The team are shareholders  
in the business and have long 
term incentives to build value  
for shareholders.

5. Brian Howlett, Non-executive Director
Brian Howlett has a wealth of international experience as a medtech  
leader which he is currently applying in a Non-Executive / Chairman 
capacity for surgical graft company Vascular Flow Technologies Ltd, skin 
cancer imaging company Michelson Diagnostics Ltd and medical device 
coating and surface modification company Accentus Medical Ltd, as well 
as ANGLE plc. Brian was formerly CEO of Lombard Medical Technologies 
PLC, an AIM listed company specialising in stents for abdominal aortic 
aneurysms from 2005 to 2009. During his tenure significant capital was 
raised to fund the development of operations to commercialise the Aorfix 
stent graft towards regulatory approvals and growing revenues in EU, USA, 
Russia and Brazil. 

Corporate experience includes six years as UK Country Leader of Boston 
Scientific Ltd between 1999 and 2005, during which time major medical 
devices such as the TAXUS drug eluting stent were launched driving sales 
and profits to the point where the UK and Ireland subsidiary became one of 
the leading revenue contributors to the Corporation’s European operations. 
Between 1987 and 1999 Brian was Managing Director of the UK sales and 
manufacturing subsidiary of Cobe Laboratories Inc. 

In addition, Brian spent almost 20 years in the pharmaceutical industry, 
gaining strong sales and marketing experience through a number of senior 
management positions in UK, Scandinavia and the Benelux markets within 
Fisons plc.

Prof Adrian Newland
Prof Adrian Newland (who is not related to ANGLE’s Chief Executive) 
is Professor of Haematology at Barts Health NHS Trust and Queen 
Mary University of London. He is Director of Pathology for the Trust 
and is Clinical Director of the North East London Cancer Network. 
He was President of the Royal College of Pathologists from 2005 
to 2008. He chairs the National Blood Transfusion Committee 
and is pathology lead for NHS London. He is currently chair of the 
Diagnostic Assessment Programme for the National Institute for 
Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) and is a member of the NICE 
Sifting Group for cancer drugs. Adrian has been a Member of the 
Scientific Advisory Panel of the Institute of Cancer Research from 
1995 until 2003 and Chair of the London Cancer New Drugs Group 
since 2002. He has been a Member of the National Chemotherapy 
Implementation Group since 2010 and a Member of the Expert 
Reference Group on Cancer Care in London since 2009 and is a 
current member of the national Cancer Outcomes Advisory Group 
and the Human Genome Strategy Group.

Prof Ashok Venkitaraman
Prof Ashok Venkitaraman holds the Ursula Zoellner Professorship  
of Cancer Research at the University of Cambridge, and is Director 
of the Medical Research Council’s Cancer Cell Unit and Joint Director 
of the Medical Research Council Hutchison Cancer Research Centre. 
Ashok’s research has helped to elucidate the connections between 
chromosome instability and the genesis of epithelial cancers.  
He has been instrumental in establishing the Cambridge Molecular 
Therapeutics Programme, an initiative that links chemists, physicists, 
structural biologists, cancer biologists and clinicians at the University 
of Cambridge. Ashok has been a member of the Scientific Advisory 
Boards of Astex Therapeutics Ltd, Cambridge Antibody Technology 
(AstraZeneca affiliate), Massachusetts General Hospital Cancer 
Center and currently chairs the Scientific Advisory Board of Sentinel 
Oncology Ltd. He has also been a John H Blaffer Lecturer at M D 
Anderson Cancer Center. Ashok was elected a Fellow of the Academy 
of Medical Sciences, London, in 2001, and a Member of the European 
Molecular Biology Organization (EMBO) European Academy, 
Heidelberg, in 2004.

Scientific Advisory Board
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The Directors present their Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2013 for ANGLE plc (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group” 
or “ANGLE”). ANGLE plc, Company registration number 04985171, is a public listed company, incorporated and domiciled in England and quoted on the Alternative 
Investment Market (AIM). The Annual Report includes two voluntarily prepared statements: the Corporate Governance Report and the Remuneration Report.

The Directors who held office as at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information  
of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of  
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Principal activities 
The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company. The Group’s principal trading activity is undertaken by Parsortix, a specialist medical diagnostics 
company with pioneering products in cancer diagnostics and foetal health. The Group also has investments in Geomerics (computer games middleware and computer 
graphics) and Novocellus (IVF embryo viability) and a specialist technology consultancy.

Review of the business and future developments
The Chairman’s Statement, Chief Executive’s Statement and Financial Review (on pages 6 to 13) report on the Group’s performance during the past financial year  
and its prospects.

The information that fulfils the requirements of the Business Review is contained within the Chief Executive’s Statement and Financial Review on pages 8 to 13 and  
is incorporated into this report by reference.

Results and dividends
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year is set out on page 26. 

The Group made a loss for the year of £1,030,588 (2012: loss £2,709,285).

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year (2012: £nil). The Board periodically reviews the Company’s dividend policy in the context  
of its financial condition.

Research and development
Total expenditure on research and development in the year amounted to £1,269,955 (2012: £623,621). Expenditure on research and development expensed through 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income Statement amounted to £328,011 in the year (2012: £623,621), including both third party R&D costs and own staff costs. 
Additional expenditure on research and development capitalised on the Statement of Financial Position amounted to £941,944 in the year (2012: £nil).

Property, plant and equipment
The changes in property, plant and equipment during the year are explained in Note 13 to the Financial Statements.

Directors and their interests
The following Directors have held office since 1 May 2012:

I F Griffiths

B Howlett (Appointed 7 January 2013)

A D W Newland

D W Quysner

G R Selvey

The Directors’ interests, including beneficial interests, in the ordinary shares and share options of the Company are shown in the Remuneration Report on pages  
22 to 24.

Directors’ Report
For the year ended 30 April 2013
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Significant shareholdings
In addition to the Directors’ interests shown on pages 22 to 24, the following shareholders had interests in 3% or more of the Company’s ordinary share capital  
at 19 September 2013:

     Holding
Name    Number of shares %

Simon Salwan Esq (directly & indirectly)    1,493,712 3.30

Alex Posner Esq    1,465,994 3.24

Andrew French Esq    1,421,565 3.14

Risk management
Details of the Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies are disclosed in Note 15 to these Financial Statements, along with further information  
on the Group’s use of financial instruments.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Directors consider that the Group is exposed to a number of risks and uncertainties which it seeks to mitigate. The principal risks are:

• Development/technical risk – the Group undertakes significant development activity with the aim of launching new products and services, but there remain 
considerable technical risks, which may result in delays, increased costs or ultimately failure. The Group seeks to mitigate these risks by using skilled staff and  
third party experts in various fields from design to manufacturing.

• Regulatory risk – major success with the Parsortix cancer diagnostic product will require regulatory authorisation for clinical use from various regulatory 
authorities which will require data relating to the efficacy, safety and quality of the product. If it proves difficult to achieve authorisations, major revenues may  
be delayed or may not be achievable at all. The Group seeks to mitigate this risk by using external specialist resources (regulatory, design, manufacturing etc)  
and by conducting its operations within recognised quality assurance standards.

• Competitive/market risk – there are numerous competitive groups seeking to develop alternative cancer diagnostic products. At present, the Directors believe 
that the Parsortix technology has the potential to be more simple, effective and affordable than competing technologies. However, it is possible at any time that 
a competing technology which out-performs Parsortix may enter the market. The Group seeks to mitigate this risk through its IP position, accelerating product 
launch and monitoring customer needs and competitors.

• IP Risk – the Group is dependent on its intellectual property (IP). It is possible that competitors may infringe this intellectual property or otherwise challenge its 
validity, which might result in uncertainty, litigation costs and/or loss of earnings. The Group seeks to mitigate this risk by employing patent agents and protecting 
its IP.

• Financial/liquidity risk – the Group is investing heavily in R&D and is moving into a product launch phase. In the event that new funds are required there can be 
no guarantee that these will be available. The Group seeks to mitigate this risk by careful planning and cash management, maintaining a strong focus on milestone 
and performance delivery and through maintaining close shareholder relations.

• Staff risk – the Group’s future success is dependent on its management team and staff and there is the risk of loss of key personnel. The Group seeks to mitigate 
this risk by close management and through staff incentive schemes.

• Investment risk – the exit environment remains challenging and there may be pressures on prices and/or delays in securing cash exits from investments and these 
companies may require further support from the Group. Investments face their own technological, market and financial risk. The Group seeks to mitigate this risk 
through close involvement with the investment but there can be no guarantee that any investment will be a success. 

Supplier payment policy
It is Group policy to communicate clearly and agree the terms of payment at the start of business with suppliers and to pay in accordance with the agreed terms  
of the contract and other legal obligations. ANGLE agrees terms for certain projects such that its supplier will be paid once ANGLE has been paid. Where no contract 
terms are specified, then assuming suppliers have met their obligations, the policy is to pay within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice. The Group had 29 days’ 
purchases outstanding for payment at 30 April 2013 (2012: 46 days), based on the average daily amount invoiced by suppliers during the year. The Company had  
no trade payables at 30 April 2013 (2012: £nil).

Charitable and political donations
The Group made no charitable or political donations during the year (2012: £nil). 
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Directors’ Report
Continued

Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Company Financial Statements for each financial year. The Directors are required by the AIM Rules of the 
London Stock Exchange to prepare Group Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European 
Union (“EU”) and have elected under company law to prepare the Company Financial Statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law).

The Group Financial Statements are required by law and IFRS adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial position and performance of the Group; the Companies 
Act 2006 provides in relation to such financial statements that references in the relevant part of that Act to financial statements giving a true and fair view are 
references to their achieving a fair presentation.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. 

In preparing each of the Group and Company Financial Statements, the Directors are required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• for the Group Financial Statements state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted by the EU;
• for the Company Financial Statements state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and 

explained in the Company Financial Statements; and
• prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s and the Company’s transactions and 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply 
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the ANGLE plc website. The Group’s website 
is intended to meet the legal requirements for the UK and not to meet the different legal requirements relating to the preparation and dissemination of financial 
information in other countries.

Going concern
The Directors have prepared and reviewed the financial projections for the 12 month period from the date of signing of these Financial Statements. Whilst there are 
some uncertainties over the timing of cash receipts and payments, based on the combination of existing cash, anticipated investment returns, projected income and 
expenditure (the timing of some of which is at the Group’s discretion), and other potential sources of funding, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the 
Company and Group have adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Accordingly the going concern basis has been used in preparing the 
Financial Statements. Note 1.4 provides additional information.

Auditor
The auditor Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP, Chartered Accountants, has indicated its willingness to continue in office.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 2:00 pm on 31 October 2013 at The Surrey Technology Centre, 40 Occam Road, The Surrey Research Park, 
Guildford, GU2 7YG. The notice of meeting is enclosed within this report on pages 61 to 64.

By order of the Board

A D W Newland
Chief Executive
4 October 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
The Company’s shares were admitted to trading on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) of the London Stock Exchange on 17 March 2004. AIM listed companies 
are not required to comply with the disclosures of the UK Corporate Governance Code June 2010 (the “Code”). However, the Board supports the principles contained 
in the Code and is committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance. In respect of the year ended 30 April 2013 the Board has sought to comply 
with the provisions of the Code in so far as it considers them to be appropriate to a company of this size, nature and structure, and has explained any areas of non-
compliance with those provisions.

Below is a brief description of the Board, its role and its committees followed by details of the Group’s systems of internal control.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the proper management of the Group. Its aim is to provide leadership and control in order to ensure the growth 
and development of a successful business, while representing the interests of the Company’s shareholders.

The Board currently comprises the Non-executive Chairman, two Non-executive and two Executive Directors and is responsible to shareholders for the governance 
of ANGLE plc and for the effective operation and management of the Group. Different Directors hold the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive and there is a clear 
division of responsibilities between them. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the running of the Board, ensuring that no individual or group dominates the 
Board’s decision making and ensuring that the Non-executive Directors are properly briefed on matters. The Chief Executive has responsibility for implementing 
the strategy of the Board and managing the day-to-day business activities of the Group through his management of the Executive Directors and senior managers. 
Individual Directors possess a wide variety of skills and experience and biographical details of the Directors are set out on page 14 and 15.

The Non-executive Directors are considered by the Board to be independent of management and free of any relationship which could materially interfere with  
the exercise of their independent judgement. The Board considers that the Non-executive Directors are of sufficient calibre and numbers to bring the strength  
of independence to the Board. The Board has not nominated one of them as a Senior Independent Director, as recommended in the Code, as it believes issues can 
be raised through the normal channels of the Chairman, Chief Executive and Finance Director and where necessary either of the Non-executive Directors can be 
approached directly.

Management supply the Board with appropriate and timely information. All Directors are able to take training and/or independent professional advice in the 
furtherance of their duties if necessary. All Directors also have access, at the Company’s expense, to experienced legal advice through the Company’s legal advisors 
and other independent professional advisors as required.

The Board has at least eight meetings per year with additional special meetings as required. As well as regularly reviewing trading performance and significant risks, 
the Board has a schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for decision, including the review and approval of:

• Group policy and long term plans and strategy for the profitable development of the business;
• interim and annual Financial Statements;
• major investments and divestments;
• other significant financing matters such as acquisitions and capital item purchases;
• annual budgets and amendments; and
• senior executive remuneration and appointments.

In addition certain other responsibilities have been delegated to the Committees of the Board, each of which has clearly defined terms of reference (available from 
the Company Secretary).

Board effectiveness and evaluation
The Company supports the concept of an effective Board leading and controlling the Company. The Board therefore undertakes a periodic evaluation of its 
performance, its Directors and its Committees, the most recent of which was undertaken in July 2013. The review, led by the Chairman, involves each Board member 
providing feedback and comments on the others and where necessary specific actions are identified to improve certain areas.

Service contracts and letters of appointment
The two Executive Directors Andrew Newland and Ian Griffiths have service contracts with the Company dated 9 March 2004 and effective from 17 March 2004.  
The contracts are not set for a specific term, but include a rolling 12-month notice period by the Company or the individual.

The Non-executive Chairman Garth Selvey has a letter of appointment dated and effective from 7 September 2006. The Non-executive Director David Quysner has 
a letter of appointment dated 9 March 2004 and effective from 17 March 2004. The Non-executive Director Brian Howlett has a letter of appointment dated and 
effective from 7 January 2013. These letters are issued in place of service contracts. These appointments are not set for a specific term and are terminable at will 
without notice by either party.

Election
Under the Company’s Articles of Association, newly appointed Directors are required to resign and seek re-election at the first Annual General Meeting following their 
appointment, and all Directors are required to seek re-election at intervals of no more than three years. Brian Howlett was appointed during the year and all other 
Directors were re-elected by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 29 September 2010. Accordingly all Directors are seeking re-election this year.
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Corporate Governance Report
Continued

Committees of the Board
The Board maintains Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees. All committees operate with written terms of reference. Their minutes are circulated  
for review and consideration by the full Board of Directors, supplemented by oral reports on matters of particular significance from the Committee Chairmen  
at Board Meetings.

The Code recommends there are two Non-executive Directors on the Audit and Remuneration committees and the Company is now compliant following the 
appointment of Brian Howlett in January 2013. In September 2007 the then Non-executive Director Garth Selvey was appointed as Chairman and remained on the 
Audit and Remuneration Committees as the Board believed it was appropriate to have more than one Member on the Audit and Remuneration Committees. Although 
this was non-compliant with the Code, as the Chairman is not considered independent under the provisions of the Code, the Board believed it offered an appropriate 
solution in both avoiding only having one Member of the Committees and in reflecting the requirements of the Company. 

The following committees assist the full Board in the exercise of its responsibilities by dealing with specific aspects of the Group’s affairs:

Audit Committee
The members of the Committee are the Non-executive Director David Quysner (Chairman of the Audit Committee), the Non-Executive Director Brian Howlett  
and the Chairman Garth Selvey. The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review the interim and annual accounts before they are submitted to the Board. 
The external auditors, Finance Director and Chief Executive may attend by invitation. Provision is made to meet with the auditors at least once a year without any 
Executive Director present.

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference and considers financial reporting, corporate governance and internal controls. Its review of financial reporting 
includes discussion of major accounting issues, policies and compliance with generally accepted accounting standards, review of key management judgements and 
estimates, review of risk assessment and risk management activities and going concern assumptions. It also reviews the scope and results of the external audit and 
the independence and objectivity of the auditors and makes recommendations to the Board on issues surrounding their remuneration, appointment, resignation or 
removal. The Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring the provision of non-audit services provided by the Group’s auditors and assesses the likely impact 
on the auditor’s independence and objectivity before awarding them any material contract for additional services.

Remuneration Committee
The members of the Committee are the Chairman Garth Selvey (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and the Non-executive Directors David Quysner  
and Brian Howlett. The Remuneration Committee meets as required. None of them has any personal financial interest in the matters to be decided (other than  
as shareholders), potential conflicts of interest arising from cross-directorships nor any day-to-day involvement in running the business. The Chief Executive and 
Finance Director may attend by invitation but are not present when matters affecting their own remuneration arrangements are considered.

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference and the Committee reviews and sets the remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the 
Executive Directors and senior management. It also agrees a policy for the salaries of all staff and is responsible for the development of the Company’s remuneration 
scheme. The decisions of the Committee are formally ratified by the Board. 

Details of Directors’ remuneration and service contracts together with Directors’ interests are shown in the Remuneration Report on pages 22 to 24.

Nominations Committee
The members of the Committee are the Chairman Garth Selvey (Chairman of the Nominations Committee) and the Non-executive Directors David Quysner  
and Brian Howlett. The Nominations Committee meets as required. The Chief Executive and Finance Director may attend by invitation.

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference and is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and for recommending  
to the Board suitable candidates for both executive and non-executive Board appointments.

Directors’ attendance
Directors’ attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the year ended 30 April 2013 is set out below:

 Garth David Brian Andrew Ian
 Selvey Quysner  Howlett Newland Griffiths

Board 14/14 14/14 3/3 14/14 14/14

Audit 2/2 2/2 1/1 N/A N/A

Remuneration 1/1 1/1 1/1 N/A N/A

Nominations 1/1 1/1 0/0 N/A N/A

Scoring represents individual Directors’ attendance for those meetings when they were members of the Board or Committee. Brian Howlett was appointed to the 
Board on 7 January 2013.
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Internal controls
Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs of the Group and the risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide reasonable 
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The system of internal control is designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business 
objectives, rather than to eliminate it.

An internal audit function is not considered necessary or practical due to the size of the Group and the close day to day control exercised by the Executive Directors 
and senior management. The Board will continue to monitor the requirement to have an internal audit function.

The key procedures that the Directors have established with a view to providing an effective system of internal control are as follows:

Management structure
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group and focuses on the overall Group strategy and the interests of shareholders. There is a schedule of matters 
specifically reserved for decision by the Board. The Board has an organisational structure with clearly-defined responsibilities and lines of accountability and each 
Executive Director has been given responsibility for specific aspects of the Group’s affairs.

Quality and integrity of personnel
The integrity and competence of personnel are ensured through high recruitment standards and subsequent training. High quality personnel are seen as an essential 
part of the control environment.

Identification of business risks
The Board is responsible for identifying the major business risks faced by the Group and for determining the appropriate course of action to manage those risks.  
The Audit Committee also considers and determines relevant action in respect of any control issues raised by the auditors.

Budgets and reporting
Each year the Board approves the annual budget which includes an assessment of key risk areas. Performance is monitored and relevant action taken throughout the 
year through regular reporting to the Board of variances from the budget and preparation of updated forecasts for the year together with information on the key risk 
areas. Underpinning these budgets is a system of internal financial control, based on authorisation procedures and tiers of authority.

Investment and divestment appraisal
All material investment and divestment decisions require appraisal, review and Board approval.

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal controls and has a process for the continuous identification, evaluation and management of 
the significant risks the Group faces. Assessment considers the external environment, the industry in which the Group operates, the internal environment and non-
financial risks such as operational and legal risks. The risks identified are ranked based on significance and likelihood of occurrence. The Board reviews the controls in 
place to mitigate those risks and improvements are made where required. A number of improvements have been made in the year and others have been identified  
and are being progressed. Day-to-day responsibility for effective internal control and risk monitoring rests with senior management.

Shareholder relations
The Company seeks to maintain and enhance good relations with its shareholders and analysts. The Group’s Interim and Annual Reports are supplemented by regular 
published updates to investors on commercial progress. All investors have access to up-to-date information on the Group via its website, www.angleplc.com, which 
also provides contact details for investor relations queries, details on the Company’s share price, share price graphs and share trading activity. The Company also 
distributes Group announcements electronically. Shareholders and other interested parties wishing to receive announcements via email are invited to sign up to  
the “Email Alert” facility in the Investor Centre section on the Company’s website.

The Directors seek to build on a mutual understanding of objectives between the Company and its shareholders, especially considering the specialist and medium 
term nature of the business. Institutional shareholders, private client brokers and analysts are in contact with the Directors through a regular programme of briefing 
presentations and meetings to discuss issues and give feedback, primarily following the announcement of the interim and preliminary results, but throughout the year 
as required. The Board also receives formal feedback through the Company’s stockbroker and individual shareholders are welcome to make contact with the Company 
via email or telephone.

All shareholders are invited to make use of the Company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) to raise any questions regarding the strategy, management and operations 
of the Group. The Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees are available to answer any questions from shareholders at the AGM.



22 ANGLE plc 
Annual Report & Accounts 2013

Remuneration Report

The Company is not required by either the AIM Listing Rules or the Companies Act to produce a remuneration report, but has provided the information below because 
of its commitment to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Company’s remuneration policy is the responsibility of the Remuneration Committee.

Remuneration policy
The Company’s policy on remuneration is to attract, retain and incentivise the Directors and staff in a manner consistent with the goals of good corporate  
governance. In setting the Company’s remuneration policy, the Remuneration Committee considers a number of factors including the basic salary, incentives and 
benefits available to Executive Directors, senior managers and staff of comparable companies. Consistent with this policy the Company’s remuneration packages 
awarded to Executive Directors and senior management are intended to be competitive, comprise a significant proportion of performance related remuneration  
and align employees with shareholders’ interests.

Basic salary and benefits
Salary levels are reviewed annually. The Committee believes that basic pay should be competitive in the relevant employment market and reflect individual 
responsibilities and performance. Medical health insurance and life cover benefits are also provided to employees. 

Trading Performance Annual Bonus Plan
The Company has a Trading Performance Annual Bonus Plan. This Plan seeks to focus efforts on increasing profitability by allocating a proportion of the increase  
in Profits after tax from Trading Performance compared to the prior year to a bonus pool for the Executive Directors and staff.

Proceeds of Realised Investments Bonus Plan 
The Company has a Proceeds of Realised Investments Bonus Plan. This Plan seeks to focus efforts on the achievement of investment realisations by allocating  
10% of all cash realisations to a bonus pool for the Executive Directors and staff. Funds raised from investment realisations will be allocated to the development  
of the Group’s specialist medtech business. Surplus funds, if any, will be returned to shareholders as a distribution. Distributions will be subject to the availability  
of distributable reserves and when appropriate the Company will seek the necessary approvals to allow this.

Share options
The Company has Enterprise Management Incentive (EMI) and Unapproved Share Option Schemes as a means of encouraging ownership and aligning interests  
of staff and external shareholders.

Discretionary incentives 
The Group may operate with discretionary incentives either in addition to or instead of the incentives described above in any particular year, dependent on the needs 
of the business.

Non-pensionable
None of the awards under the Trading Performance Annual Bonus Plan, Proceeds of Realised Investments Bonus Plan, Share Option Schemes or discretionary 
incentives are pensionable.
 
Non-executive Directors
Non-executive Directors receive a fixed fee for their services and the reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in attending meetings. The remuneration of the 
Non-executive Directors, which is determined by the Board as a whole within the overall limits stipulated in the Articles of Association, was unchanged during the 
year. Non-executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any of the Company’s incentive schemes.

Directors’ interests – shares
The Directors’ interests, including beneficial interests, in the ordinary shares of the Company were as stated below:

Ordinary shares of 10p each    30 April 2013  1 May 2012

I F Griffiths    559,546 529,546

B Howlett    10,000 N/A

A D W Newland    7,054,686 7,054,686

D W Quysner    20,000 20,000

G R Selvey    20,000 20,000
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Directors’ emoluments
The aggregate remuneration received by Directors who served during the year was as follows:

Year ended 30 April 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012
 Salary/Fees Benefits Bonus Pension Total Total
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Chairman 

G R Selvey 15 – – – 15 15

Executive 

I F Griffiths 82 1 5 20 108 101

A D W Newland 184 4 10 – 198 187

Non-executive 

D W Quysner 15 – – – 15 15

B Howlett 5 – – – 5 N/A

Total 301 5 15 20 341 318

G R Selvey and D W Quysner have voluntarily waived part of their emoluments with effect from December 2008. B Howlett’s fees cover the period from his 
appointment as a Director on 7 January 2013.

Benefits include amounts in respect of private medical insurance and taxation advice.

Performance bonuses were awarded during the year. No bonuses were awarded or paid to Executive Directors in the year ending 30 April 2012. 

I F Griffiths sacrificed salary during the year. The Company elected to make contributions to a personal pension.
 
Directors’ interests – share options
The Directors’ interests in options over the ordinary shares of the Company were as stated below:

  At     At Vested –  Earliest
 Date of 1 May     30 April capable of Exercise exercise Expiry
Name grant 2012 Granted Lapsed Cancelled Exercised 2013 exercise price (£) date date

I F Griffiths 30/08/2011 500,000 – – (33,981) – 466,019 333,333 0.2575 Note (1) 29/08/2021

 18/11/2011 500,000 – – (312,685) – 187,315 – 0.7550 Note (2) 17/11/2021

 05/11/2012 – 33,981 – – – 33,981 – 0.2575 Note (1) 29/08/2021

 05/11/2012 – 312,685 – – – 312,685 – 0.7550 Note (2) 17/11/2021

  1,000,000 346,666 – (346,666) – 1,000,000 333,333

A D W Newland 30/08/2011 950,000 – – (346,666) – 603,334 466,019 0.2575 Note (1) 29/08/2021

 18/11/2011 1,000,000 – – – – 1,000,000 – 0.7550 Note (2) 17/11/2021

 05/11/2012 – 346,666 – – – 346,666 167,314 0.2575 Note (1) 29/08/2021

  1,950,000 346,666 – (346,666) – 1,950,000 633,333

(1)   Vesting is subject to a) a performance condition that the share price together with any dividend payments has risen by at least 50% from the market price on 30 August 2011, and  
b) a service condition with options vesting over a three year period.

(2)  Vesting is subject to a) the performance conditions that (i) the Company’s share price must have increased to £2 and (ii) the Parsortix separation device must have been demonstrated 
to successfully capture circulating tumour cells (CTCs) from cancer patient blood, and b) a service condition with options vesting over a three year period. 
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Directors’ interests – share options continued
No Directors’ options were exercised during the year. During the year a number of options were exchanged between the different Share Option Schemes, in 
accordance with the rules, replacing previously granted Unapproved options with EMI options. The Replacement Options involved the same number of ordinary shares 
with the same exercise price, vesting conditions and dates as the share options they replaced. 

Note 21 provides additional information on share options.

Shareholder return
The market price of the Company’s shares on 30 April 2013 was 50.50p and the range of market price during the period from 1 May 2012 until 30 April 2013 was 
between 25.00p (low) and 72.00p (high).

By order of the Board

Garth Selvey
Remuneration Committee Chairman
4 October 2013
 

Remuneration Report
Continued
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of ANGLE plc

We have audited the Group and Parent Company Financial Statements (“the Financial Statements”) on pages 26 to 60. The financial reporting framework that 
has been applied in the preparation of the Group Financial Statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the 
European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company Financial Statements is applicable law and  
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit 
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As more fully explained in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement on page 18, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements and  
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for 
Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the APB’s website at http://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Codes-Standards/Audit-and-
assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Scope-of-audit/UK-Private-Sector-Entity-(issued-1-December-2010).aspx. 

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion:

• the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 30 April 2013 and of the Group’s loss  
for the year then ended;

• the Group Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union;
• the Parent Company Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
• the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with the  
Financial Statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited  
by us; or

• the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Mark Harwood (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
25 Farringdon Street
London
EC4A 4AB

4 October 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 April 2013

    2013 2012
   Note £ £

Revenue   2 969,023 1,407,073

Other operating income   3 – 85,018

Change in fair value   4 514,400 (1,346,073)

Operating costs   5 (2,555,546) (2,895,566)

Operating profit/(loss)     (1,072,123) (2,749,548)

Finance income    41,535 11,182

Finance costs     –   29,081

Net finance income/(costs)   9  41,535   40,263

Profit/(loss) before tax     (1,030,588) (2,709,285)

Tax   10 –  – 

Profit/(loss) for the year    (1,030,588) (2,709,285)

Other comprehensive income   

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations     13,477   (14,145) 

Other comprehensive income     13,477   (14,145) 

Total comprehensive income for the year    (1,017,111) (2,723,430)

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:   

Owners of the parent    (865,738) (2,585,225)

Non-controlling interests    (164,850) (124,060)

Profit/(loss) for the year    (1,030,588) (2,709,285)

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:   

Owners of the parent    (841,109) (2,596,670)

Non-controlling interests    (176,002) (126,760)

Total comprehensive income for the year    (1,017,111) (2,723,430)

Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic and Diluted (pence per share)   11 (2.54) (7.88)

All activity arose from continuing operations.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 April 2013

    2013 2012
   Note £ £

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Non-controlled investments   12 2,360,811 2,594,247

Other receivables   12 – 153,927

Property, plant and equipment   13 138,424 17,234

Intangible assets   14  1,079,755   411,123 

Total non-current assets     3,578,990  3,176,531

Current assets

Non-controlled investments   12 1,599,972 –

Inventories   16 62,260 –

Trade and other receivables   17 453,921 888,447

Cash and cash equivalents    1,827,690   1,120,806

Total current assets    3,943,843  2,009,253

Total assets     7,522,833  5,185,784

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued capital   20 4,524,306 3,782,456

Share premium    18,414,265 15,829,765

Share based payments reserve    369,510 299,543

Other reserve    2,553,356 2,553,356

Translation reserve    11,783 (12,846)

Retained earnings    (18,673,830) (17,768,343)

ESOT shares   22  (102,172)   (102,172) 

Equity attributable to owners of the parent    7,097,218   4,581,759

Non-controlling interests    (310,801) (175,299)

Total equity     6,786,417   4,406,460

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Controlled investments – loans   18  131,751  131,751

Total non-current liabilities     131,751  131,751

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables   19  604,665  647,573

Total current liabilities     604,665  647,573

Total liabilities     736,416  779,324

Total equity and liabilities     7,522,833   5,185,784

The Financial Statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 4 October 2013 and signed on its behalf by:

I F Griffiths A D W Newland
Director Director 
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 April 2013

    2013 2012
    £ £

Operating activities  

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations    (1,030,588) (2,709,285)

Adjustments for:  

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment    19,079 6,874

(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment    – 210

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets    307,879 32,703

Exchange differences    14,177 (8,943)

Net finance (income)/costs    (41,535) (40,263)

Change in fair value    (514,400) 1,346,073

Share based payments     70,718   146,457

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital:    (1,174,670) (1,226,174)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories    (62,260) –

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables    (88,187) (60,290)

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables     (66,984)   205,918

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities    (1,392,101) (1,080,546)

Investing activities  

Purchase of property, plant and equipment    (139,501) (15,927)

Purchase of intangible assets     (941,075) –

Purchase of convertible loans    (257,200) (222,523)

Provision of short term loans    (63,347) (509,337)

Repayment of convertible loans    – (96,197)

Proceeds from settlement of Other receivables    153,927 –

Interest received     19,295  272

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities    (1,227,901)  (843,712)

Financing activities  

Net proceeds from issue of share capital    3,326,350 2,449,724

Interest paid    –  (70)

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities    3,326,350 2,449,654

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations    706,348 525,396

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations    –   (25,576)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    706,348 499,820

Cash and cash equivalents at start of year    1,120,806  619,118

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations     536   1,868

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year    1,827,690 1,120,806
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 April 2013

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

   Share     Total
   based     Share- Non-
 Issued Share payments Other Translation Retained ESOT holders’  controlling Total
 capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings shares equity interests equity
 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

At 1 May 2011 3,043,728 14,126,365 623,440 2,553,356 (1,401)  (15,455,253)  (307,987)  4,582,248 (48,539) 4,533,709

For the year to 30 April 2012 

Consolidated profit/(loss)      (2,585,225)   (2,585,225)  (124,060) (2,709,285)

Other comprehensive income 

Exchange differences in translating foreign operations    (11,445)   (11,445) (2,700) (14,145)

Total comprehensive income     (11,445) (2,585,225)   (2,596,670) (126,760) (2,723,430)

Issue of shares 738,728 1,710,996      2,449,724  2,449,724

Share based payments  (7,596) 154,053     146,457  146,457

Released on forfeiture/lapse/cancellation   (419,863)    419,863  –  –

Utilised on share schemes   (58,087)   58,087  –  –

Change in accounting estimate*      (205,815) 205,815 –  –

At 30 April 2012 3,782,456 15,829,765 299,543 2,553,356 (12,846)  (17,768,343)  (102,172)  4,581,759 (175,299) 4,406,460

For the year to 30 April 2013 

Consolidated profit/(loss)      (865,738)  (865,738) (164,850) (1,030,588)

Other comprehensive income 

Exchange differences in translating foreign operations    24,629   24,629 (11,152) 13,477

Total comprehensive income     24,629 (865,738)  (841,109) (176,002) (1,017,111)

Issue of shares 741,850 2,584,500      3,326,350  3,326,350

Share based payments   70,718     70,718  70,718

Released on forfeiture/lapse   (751)   751  –  –

Deemed disposal of non-controlling interest      (40,500)  (40,500) 40,500 –

At 30 April 2013 4,524,306 18,414,265 369,510 2,553,356 11,783 (18,673,830) (102,172) 7,097,218 (310,801) 6,786,417

*  In the prior year the basis for estimating the remaining cost of shares held by the ESOT was changed from using the original cost less the market value of shares utilised at the date  
of disposal, to a remaining cost based on the weighted average purchase cost. 

 
Share premium
Represents amounts subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value, net of directly attributable share issue costs.

Other reserve
The other reserve is a “merger” reserve arising from the acquisition of the former holding company. 

Translation reserve
The translation reserve account comprises cumulative exchange differences arising on consolidation from the translation of the financial statements of international 
operations. Under IFRS this is separated from retained earnings.

ESOT shares
This reserve relates to shares held by the ANGLE Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) and may be used to assist in meeting the obligations under employee 
remuneration schemes.

Non-controlling interests
Represents amounts attributed to non-controlling (minority) interests for profits or losses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and assets or liabilities  
in the Statement of Financial Position.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Continued

Share based payments reserve
The share based payments reserve account is used for the corresponding entry to the share based payments charged through a) the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income for staff incentive arrangements relating to ANGLE plc equity b) the Statement of Financial Position for third party professional advisor’s fee arrangements 
relating to ANGLE plc equity c) the Statement of Comprehensive Income for staff incentive arrangements relating to the controlled investments equity, and d) the 
Statement of Financial Position for acquired intangible assets in the controlled investments comprising intellectual property (IP). These components are separately 
identified in the table below. Transfers are made from this reserve to retained earnings as the related share options are exercised, cancelled, lapse or expire or as a 
controlled investment becomes non-controlled (a deemed disposal). 

   Controlled Controlled 
 ANGLE ANGLE investments investments 
 employees advisors employees IP Total
 £ £ £ £ £

At 1 May 2011 461,931 – 44,274 117,235 623,440

Charge for the year 146,457 7,596 – – 154,053

Released on forfeiture/lapse/cancellation (416,118) – (3,745) – (419,863)

Utilised on share schemes (50,491) (7,596) – – (58,087)

At 30 April 2012 141,779 – 40,529 117,235 299,543

Charge for the year 70,718 – – – 70,718

Released on forfeiture/lapse (751) – – – (751)

At 30 April 2013 211,746 – 40,529 117,235 369,510
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 April 2013

1 Accounting policies
1.1 Basis of preparation
The Annual Report and Accounts have been prepared on the basis of the recognition and measurement requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) in issue that have been endorsed by the EU for the year ended 30 April 2013. They have also been prepared in accordance with those parts of the Companies 
Act 2006 that apply to companies reporting under IFRS.

Accounting standards adopted in the year
No new accounting standards that have become effective and adopted in the year have had a significant effect on the Group’s Financial Statements.

Accounting standards issued but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these Financial Statements, there were a number of other Standards and Interpretations (International Financial Reporting 
Interpretation Committee – IFRIC) which were in issue but not yet effective, and therefore have not been applied in these Financial Statements. The Directors  
have not yet assessed the impact of the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations for future periods. 

Endorsed by the European Union
IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures
IFRS 9 Financial instruments
IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
IFRS 11 Joint arrangements
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement
IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements (amended 2011)
IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment (amended 2012)
IAS 19 Employee benefits (amended 2011)
IAS 27 Separate financial statements (amended 2011)
IAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures (amended 2011)
IAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (amended 2011)

Not yet endorsed by the European Union
Investment Entities Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 

IFRS has only been applied to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company has elected to keep and prepare its Parent Company Financial Statements  
in accordance with UK GAAP. The Financial Statements and accounting policies of the Company are presented on pages 57 to 60.

1.2 Accounting convention
These Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets at fair value,  
as required by IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The basis of consolidation is set out in Note 1.5. 

1.3 Presentation of Financial Statements
The financial information, in the form of the primary statements contained in this report, is presented in accordance with International Accounting Standard  
(IAS) 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. ANGLE has reviewed the items disclosed separately on the face of the statement of comprehensive income and the 
components of financial performance considered by management to be significant, or for which separate disclosure would assist, both in a better understanding  
of financial performance and in making projections of future results. This has been done taking into account the materiality, nature and function of components  
of income and expense.

1.4 Going concern
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Group will be able to continue its operations for the foreseeable 
future.

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and financial position are set out in the Chairman’s and 
Chief Executive’s Statements on pages 6 to 11. The principal risks and uncertainties are stated in the Directors’ report. In addition Note 15 to the Financial Statements 
includes details of the Group’s exposure to liquidity risk, capital risk, investment risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. 

The Directors have prepared and reviewed the financial projections for the 12 month period from the date of signing of these Financial Statements. Whilst there are 
some uncertainties over the timing of cash receipts and payments, based on the combination of existing cash, anticipated investment returns, projected income and 
expenditure (the timing of some of which is at the Group’s discretion), and other potential sources of funding, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the 
Company and Group have adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Accordingly the going concern basis has been used in preparing the 
Financial Statements.
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1 Accounting policies continued
1.5 Basis of consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Under IAS 28 Investments in Associates, financial instruments that are presently exercisable, and therefore may affect potential voting rights, are taken into account  
in determining control and significant influence and this may affect the basis of consolidation.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies, generally as a result of owning  
a shareholding of more than half of the voting rights, so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 

Subsidiary undertakings are consolidated on the basis of the acquisition method of accounting. Under this method of accounting the results of subsidiaries sold 
or acquired are included in the statement of comprehensive income up to, or from the date control passes. Subsidiaries’ accounting policies are amended where 
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. The interests of non-controlling 
shareholders may be initially measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquired entity’s identifiable net 
assets. The choice of measurement is made on an acquisition by acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the 
amount of those interests on initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed  
to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated fully on consolidation and the consolidated accounts reflect external transactions only.

Deemed disposals
Where the Group ceases to control an entity by means other than disposal of equity, such as when the entity issues shares to third parties that results in the Group’s 
shareholding falling below 50%, the entity ceases to be a subsidiary and is no longer consolidated. Any gain or loss arising on the “deemed disposal” is recognised in 
the statement of comprehensive income. 

Associates
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but does not control, generally as a result of owning a shareholding of between 20% to 50% of 
the equity or voting rights. The Group treats such investments in associates as accounted for in accordance with IAS 39, and upon initial recognition these investments 
are designated as at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income. Investments in associates are held at fair value in the statement of financial position. 
This treatment is permitted by IAS 28 as the Group follows an investment strategy and ultimately seeks to realise gains from the disposal of such investments.

Other investments
Other investments are generally investments where the Group owns less than 20% of the equity or voting rights. In accordance with IAS 39, upon initial recognition 
such investments are designated as at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income.

1.6 Business combinations
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration for each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values  
(at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquired entity. 
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets, including intangible assets, is recorded as goodwill. 
Acquisition-related costs are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held interests in the acquired entity are re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date 
(i.e. the date at which the Group attains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is taken through the statement of comprehensive income. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued
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1.7 Investments
The Group classifies all its investments that are not controlled investments as being designated on initial recognition as financial assets at fair value through the 
statement of comprehensive income, in compliance with IAS 39. These “non-controlled” investments are shown on the statement of financial position at their fair 
value and any associated changes in fair value are included in the statement of comprehensive income in the period they arise.

Investment instruments
As well as equity investment into Group companies, the Group may use debt financial instruments for investment, such as convertible loans, or other similar 
instruments. Controlled investments may also issue such debt instruments to third parties resulting in the recognition of a financial liability.

Valuation policy
In determining fair value, investments have been valued by the Directors in compliance with the principles of the International Private Equity and Venture Capital 
Guidelines (IPEV – edition December 2012), as recommended by the British Venture Capital Association (BVCA). The key policies are detailed below.

Listed investments – the fair values of quoted investments are based on bid prices at the reporting date.

Unlisted investments – for early stage investments the valuation methodology used most commonly by the Group is the “price of recent investment”. The following 
considerations are used when calculating the fair value using the “price of recent investment” guidelines:

• where the investment being valued was made recently, its cost will generally provide a good indication of fair value; and
• where there has been any recent investment by third parties, the price of that investment will provide a basis of the valuation.

The Group considers alternative methods for more developed investments, as set out in the IPEV Guidelines, such as multiples, industry valuation benchmarks,  
net assets, and discounted cash flows where these will produce a reliable estimate of fair value.

Where a fair value cannot be estimated reliably the investment is reported at the carrying value at the previous reporting date unless there is evidence that the 
investment has since been impaired.

1.8 Revenue
Revenue represents amounts receivable for goods and services net of value added tax.

Management services revenues are recognised in proportion to the stage of completion of each project. The stage of completion takes into account the milestones 
achieved in relation to the project deliverables.

1.9 Government Grants
Government grants receivable or received in respect of revenue expenditure are released to the statement of comprehensive income as the related expenditure is 
incurred when there is a reasonable assurance that the grant money will be received and any conditions attached to them have been fulfilled. Grant income receivable 
is held on the statement of financial position as accrued income and grant income received in advance of expenditure is held on the statement of financial position as 
deferred income. 
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1 Accounting policies continued
1.10 Employee benefits and advisor consideration
Share based payments
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment has been applied to all share based payments. 

Share based incentive arrangements which allow Group employees to acquire shares of the Company may be provided to staff, subject to certain criteria. The fair 
value of options granted is recognised as a cost of employment within operating costs with a corresponding increase in equity. Share options granted are valued  
at the date of grant using an appropriate option pricing model and taking into account the terms and conditions upon which they were granted. Market related 
performance conditions are taken into account in calculating the fair value, while service conditions and non-market related performance conditions are excluded 
from the fair value calculation, although the latter are included in initial estimates about the number of instruments that are expected to vest. The fair value is 
charged to operating costs over the vesting period of the award, which is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. Options are 
fully vested and capable of exercise when the employee becomes unconditionally entitled to the options. The annual charge is modified to take account of revised 
estimates about the number of instruments that are expected to vest, for example, options granted to employees who leave the Group during the performance or 
service condition vesting period and forfeit their rights to the share options and in the case of non-market related performance conditions, where it becomes unlikely 
they will vest. 

The fair value of options granted to professional advisors as part consideration for services in connection with fund raising is recognised as an expense against share 
premium account with a corresponding increase in equity. Share options granted are valued at the date of grant using an appropriate option pricing model and vest 
and are expensed on successful completion of the services.

Pension obligations
Pension costs are charged against profits as they fall due and represent the amount of contributions payable to employee personal pension schemes on an individual 
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Compensated absences
A liability for short term compensated absences, such as holiday, is recognised for the amount the Group may be required to pay as a result of the unused entitlement 
that has accumulated at the reporting date.

1.11 Taxes
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any 
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided for in full on all temporary differences resulting from the carrying value of an asset or liability and its tax base, except where they arise  
from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability that at the date of initial recognition does not affect accounting 
or taxable profit or loss on a transaction that is not a business combination. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax liability is settled or deferred tax asset realised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised on any increase in the fair value of investments to the extent that substantial shareholdings relief or unutilised losses may 
be unavailable. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary 
differences can be utilised. IAS 12 Income Taxes requires the separate disclosure of deferred tax assets and liabilities on the Group’s statement of financial position. 

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can  
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to taxes levied by the same 
tax authority, and the Group intends to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

1.12 Property, plant and equipment 
All property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation or impairment value. Cost includes expenditure that is attributable to the 
acquisition of the items. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value of each asset over its expected useful economic 
life. Assets held under finance leases, if any, are depreciated over their expected useful economic life on the same basis as owned assets, or where shorter, the lease 
term. Assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

The following rates are used:

Computer equipment    33.33% Straight line

Fixtures, fittings and equipment    33.33% Straight line

Laboratory equipment    20.00% – 50.00%  Straight line

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1.13 Intangible assets other than goodwill
Computer software
Under IAS 38 Intangible Assets, acquired computer software should be capitalised as an intangible asset unless it is an integral part of the related hardware  
(such as the operating system) where it remains as an item of property, plant and equipment. 

Internally developed computer software will be capitalised in accordance with the research and development accounting policy. If the software is developed  
for in-house use the capitalised amount is reclassified from research and development to computer software.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of the software over its estimated useful economic life and is included within  
operating costs. The useful economic life is estimated at 3 years, unless there are specific circumstances that dictate this should be for a shorter or longer period.

Research and development
Research expenditure is written off as incurred. 

Development expenditure is written off as incurred, except where the Directors are satisfied that a new or significantly improved product or process results and other 
relevant IAS 38 criteria are met as to the technical, commercial and financial viability of individual projects that would allow such costs to be capitalised. In such 
cases, the identifiable directly attributable expenditure is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over the period during which benefits are expected.

Intellectual Property (IP)
IP (comprising patents, know-how, copyright and licences) is acquired by the Group as a result of either a business combination (Note 1.6 – initially recognised at  
fair value in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations) or a purchase at cost. IP costs are written off as incurred except where IAS 38 criteria, as described in 
research and development above, would allow such costs to be capitalised. The Group’s view is that capitalised assets have a finite useful life and to that extent they 
should be amortised over their respective unexpired periods with provision made for impairment when required. Assets in development are not amortised until the 
Group is generating an economic return from the underlying asset. Amortisation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the costs of IP over their 
estimated useful economic lives. Estimated useful economic life is based on remaining patent life or specific terms of licences or agreements, or in the absence  
of any observable date then at five years for physical sciences IP and ten years for healthcare IP. Amortisation is included within operating costs.
 
Impairment
Intangible assets are subject to impairment reviews annually, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. 

An impairment loss is recognised within operating costs for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount  
is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the value-in-use. In the event that an intangible asset will no longer be used, for example, when a patent  
is abandoned, the balance of unamortised expenditure is written off.

Impairment reviews require the estimation of the recoverable amount based on value-in-use calculations. Intangible assets relate typically to in-process R&D and 
patents and require broader assumptions than for developed technology. Key assumptions taken into consideration relate to technological, market and financial 
risks and include the chance of product launch taking into account the stage of development of the asset, scale of milestone and royalty payments, overall market 
opportunities, market size and competitor activity, revenue projections, estimated useful lives of assets (such as patents), contractual relationships and discount rates 
to determine present values of cash flows. 

1.14 Goodwill
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings, represents the excess fair value of the consideration given over the fair value of the identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is recognised as an asset and is tested annually 
for impairment and whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses. Negative goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

1.15 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Cost includes materials and direct 
labour. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price, less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. If net 
realisable value is lower than the carrying amount, a write down provision is recognised within operating costs for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds 
its net realisable value.

1.16 Leases
Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts and finance leases, and any other leases that entail taking substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an 
asset, are capitalised on the statement of financial position and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful economic lives. Obligations under such 
agreements are included in trade and other payables net of the finance charge allocated to future periods. The finance element of the rental payment is charged to 
the statement of comprehensive income so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the net obligation outstanding in each period.
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1 Accounting policies continued
1.17 Employee Share Ownership Trust
The Group has an Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) to assist with meeting the obligations under share option and other employee remuneration schemes. 
The ESOT is consolidated as if it were a subsidiary and accounted for as Treasury (own) shares. Shares in ANGLE plc held by the ESOT are stated at weighted average 
purchase cost and presented in the statement of financial position as a deduction from equity under the heading of “ESOT Shares”. Gain or loss is not recognised  
on the purchase or sale of ESOT shares and consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity. Finance and administration costs relating to the ESOT  
are charged to operating costs as incurred.

1.18 Foreign currency
The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the Company’s functional and presentational currency. The Group determines 
the functional currency of each entity and items included in the Financial Statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The functional 
currencies of the Group’s operations are sterling and US dollars.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and held at cost use the exchange rate at the date of the initial transactions. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and held at fair value use the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Profits and losses on both the individual transactions during the period and monetary assets and liabilities are dealt with in the statement of comprehensive income.

On consolidation, the statements of comprehensive income of the foreign subsidiaries are translated at the average exchange rates for the period and the statement 
of financial position at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The exchange differences arising as a result of translating statements of comprehensive income at 
average rates and restating opening net assets at closing rates are taken to the translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred cumulative amount 
recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

1.19 Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group’s statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three 
months or less.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short term deposits as defined previously and other short term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding short-term borrowings.

Deposits
Deposits in the statement of financial position comprise longer term deposits with an original maturity of greater than three months.

Bank loans, loan notes and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs associated with the borrowings. After initial 
recognition, these are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Other assets
Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, include trade and other receivables and are stated at their amortised cost. They  
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated based on expected discounted future cash flows. Any change in the level of impairment is recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income. 
An impairment loss is reversed at subsequent reporting dates to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed its carrying value had no impairment 
loss been recognised.

Other liabilities
Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, include trade and other payables and are stated based on their amortised cost at the 
amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the reporting date.
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1.20 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation of uncertain timing or amount as a result of past events, and it is probable that the Group will be 
required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the amount to 
settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted back to present value if the effect is material. Changes in provisions are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income for the period.

1.21 Operating segments
The Group determines and presents operating segments based on the reporting information that is provided to the Board of Directors to allow them to make 
operating decisions. The Board of Directors are responsible for all significant decisions and collectively are the Chief Operating Decision-Making (CODM) body  
as defined by IFRS 8 Operating Segments. 

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn income and incur expenses, including income and 
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to 
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. 

1.22 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
The preparation of the Financial Statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates and assumptions 
and judgements are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, and are believed to be reasonable, actual results ultimately may differ 
from those estimates.

The estimates and assumptions and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are 
described below.

Valuation and impairment of unlisted investments held at fair value (Notes 1.7 and 12)
Valuations of unquoted equity investments are made in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1.7, and are usually based on the last external funding  
round, or at cost, less any provision for impairment if circumstances indicate the cost may not be recoverable. Judgements are required in a number of areas when 
determining valuation including the treatment of different classes of shares with different rights and a decision on whether or not to impair value and the quantum 
of the impairment. Where a fair value cannot be estimated reliably the investment is reported at the carrying value at the previous reporting date unless there is 
objective evidence that the investment has since been impaired.

Valuation and impairment of intangible assets (Notes 1.13, 1.14 and 14)
IAS 38 contains specific criteria that if met mean development expenditure must be capitalised as an internally generated intangible asset. Judgements are  
required in both assessing whether the criteria are met and then in applying the rules. Intangible assets are amortised over their useful lives. Useful lives are based  
on management’s estimates of the period that the assets will generate revenue, which are periodically reviewed for appropriateness. Changes to estimates in useful 
lives may result in significant variations in the amortisation charge.
 
The Group is required to review, at least annually, whether intangible assets have suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount is determined using, amongst 
others, value-in-use calculations. The use of this method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the selection of a suitable discount rate in order to calculate 
the present value of these cash flows. When reviewing intangible assets for impairment the Group has had to make various assumptions and estimates of individual 
components and their potential value and potential impairment impact. The Group considers that for each of these variables there is a range of reasonably possible 
alternative values, which results in a range of fair value estimates. None of these estimates of fair value is considered more appropriate or relevant than any other  
and therefore determining a fair value requires considerable judgement.
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2 Operating segment and revenue analysis 
The Group’s principal trading activity is undertaken by Parsortix, a specialist medical diagnostics company with pioneering products in cancer diagnostics and foetal 
health. ANGLE also has investments in Geomerics (computer games middleware and computer graphics) and Novocellus (IVF embryo viability) and a specialist 
technology consultancy.

For management reporting purposes, the Group is divided into the following operating segments:

• Controlled investments where the Group has control, typically as a result of owning in excess of 50% of the equity. These investments include Parsortix, 
Novocellus and NeuroTargets. Their results, along with associated operating companies, are consolidated into the Group’s results with investment costs  
either expensed in the statement of comprehensive income or capitalised as an internally generated intangible asset, when the relevant criteria are met. 

• Non-controlled investments where the Group does not have control. These comprise Geomerics and formerly the earn-out in relation to the sale of  
Acolyte Biomedica. These investments are held on the statement of financial position at fair value, with changes in fair value passing through the statement  
of comprehensive income.

• Management services – provision of Management services to clients including research organisations, corporate and governmental organisations on a  
fee-for-service basis. 

The nature of these operations is significantly different. 

In assessing performance and making resource allocation decisions, the Board of Directors reviews each segment. The tables below show the operating results  
by segment together with assets and liabilities.

  Controlled  Non-controlled Management
  investments investments services Total
  £ £ £ £

Year ended 30 April 2013

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Revenue  79,142  889,881 969,023

Change in fair value   514,400  514,400

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets  (307,879)   (307,879)

Other operating costs  (1,272,115)  (975,552) (2,247,667)

Operating costs   (1,579,994)  (975,552)  (2,555,546)

Operating profit/(loss)   (1,500,852)  514,400  (85,671)  (1,072,123)

Finance income/(costs)   41,535     41,535

Profit/(loss) before tax  (1,459,317)  514,400 (85,671)  (1,030,588)

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Investments (non-current)     2,360,811

Property, plant and equipment     138,424

Intangible assets – product development     954,254

Intangible assets – other     125,501

Investments (current)     1,599,972

Inventories     62,260

Trade and other receivables     453,921

Cash and cash equivalents     1,827,690

Total assets     7,522,833

Liabilities 

Trade and other payables     604,665

Loans and borrowings     131,751

Total liabilities     736,416
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2 Operating segment and revenue analysis continued

  Controlled Non-controlled Management
  investments investments services Total
  £ £ £ £

Year ended 30 April 2012 

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Revenue  79,611  1,327,462 1,407,073

Other operating income  85,018   85,018

Change in fair value   (1,346,073)  (1,346,073)

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets  (32,703)   (32,703)

Other operating costs  (1,633,712)  (1,229,151) (2,862,863)

Operating costs   (1,666,415)  (1,229,151) (2,895,566)

Operating profit/(loss)  (1,501,786) (1,346,073) 98,311 (2,749,548)

Finance income/(costs)   40,263   40,263

Profit/(loss) before tax  (1,461,523) (1,346,073) 98,311 (2,709,285)

Statement of Financial Position

Assets 

Investments (non-current)     2,594,247

Other receivables (non-current)     153,927

Property, plant and equipment     17,234

Intangible assets – other     411,123

Trade and other receivables     888,447

Cash and cash equivalents     1,120,806

Total assets     5,185,784

Liabilities 

Trade and other payables     647,573

Loans and borrowings     131,751

Total liabilities     779,324

All significant decisions are made by the Board of Directors with implementation of those decisions on a Group-wide basis. 

Over 99% of segment revenues and over 96% of segment assets by geographical location are based in the UK.

The revenue of the Group for the year has been primarily derived from its Management services activities. In addition the Group provides management services  
to its portfolio companies in the form of non-executive director services, management, accounting and administration support for which it receives fees.

Major customers
Revenues in the Management services business are mainly generated from a small number of key clients and several of these clients individually account for revenues 
in excess of 10% of Group revenue.

    2013 2012
    % of total revenues

Client one    44% 57%

Client two    27% 18%

Client three    15% 12%

3 Other operating income
Other operating income relates to income from Government research and development grants in connection with a controlled investment.
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4 Change in fair value through statement of comprehensive income

    2013 2012
    £ £

Change in fair value (Note 12)    514,400 (1,346,073) 

5 Operating costs

    2013 2012
    £ £

Staff costs – employees (Note 7)    1,402,463 1,604,848

Depreciation – owned assets (Note 13)    19,079 6,874

Impairment of intangible assets (Note 14)    288,000 32,000

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 14)    19,879 703

Operating lease costs    58,926 76,569

Auditor’s remuneration (see below)    74,700 82,575

Bad debts    – (794)

Third party research and development costs    137,544 274,063

Patent and legal costs    83,655 133,987

Third party Management services contract costs    78,672 239,182

Listed company costs    163,824 187,268

Other operating costs    228,804 258,291

Total operating costs    2,555,546 2,895,566

Operating costs are shown net of product development costs capitalised in accordance with IAS 38 (Note 14).  

    2013 2012
    £ £

Auditor’s remuneration

Audit services

Statutory audit of parent and consolidated accounts    23,100 18,500

Statutory audit of subsidiaries    32,050 47,425

Other    3,500 3,000

Non-audit services

Tax compliance services    7,300 11,350

Tax advisory services    8,750 2,300

Sub-total charged to consolidated statement of comprehensive income    74,700 82,575

Placing of shares (charged to share premium)    – 5,625

Total auditor’s remuneration    74,700 88,200

The Group has taken advantage of the newly available exemption from audit for a number of its subsidiary undertakings. Audit work is still required on these exempt 
subsidiaries to support the Group audit opinion and these costs are now included with the “Statutory audit of parent and consolidated accounts” rather than as a 
direct cost for the “Statutory audit of subsidiaries”.
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6 Directors’ emoluments

    2013 2012
    £ £

Emoluments for qualifying services including retirement benefits of £20,381 (2012: £70,867)    340,746 318,421

Emoluments disclosed above include the following amounts paid to the highest paid Director including retirement benefits of £nil (2012: £50,000):

Emoluments for qualifying services    197,726 187,693

Disclosures relating to individual Directors’ emoluments are given in the Remuneration Report on page 23.

7 Employment
Employment costs
The aggregate of employment costs of staff (including Directors) for the year was:

    2013 2012
    £ £

Wages and salaries    1,329,540 1,246,964

Social security costs    152,789 140,560

Other pension costs (Note 8)    20,381 70,867

    1,502,710 1,458,391

Employee share based payment charge (Note 21)    70,718 146,457

Total staff costs    1,573,428 1,604,848

Staff costs capitalised as product development    (170,965) –

    1,402,463 1,604,848

The key management personnel are the Directors and their remuneration is disclosed within the Remuneration Report on pages 22 to 24.

Number of employees
The average monthly number of employees (including Directors) during the year was:

    2013 2012
    Number Number

Executives    22 25

Administration    4 5

Controlled investments    3 2

Total    29 32

 
8 Pension costs 
The Group incurred UK pension contribution charges of £20,381 (2012: £70,867) for payment directly to personal pension plan schemes. Contributions to personal 
pension plan schemes of £nil (2012: £29,629) were payable at the year end and are included in trade and other payables.
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9 Net finance income/(costs)

    2013 2012
    £ £

Finance income    41,535 11,182

Finance costs

Bank and other interest    – (70)

Interest on convertible loans    – (3,384)

Release of interest accrual    – 32,535

    – (29,081)

Net finance income/(costs)    41,535 40,263

In the prior year an interest bearing unsecured convertible loan note was issued to a non-controlled investment (Note 12). This has generated the majority  
of the finance income in 2013 and 2012.

10  Tax 
The Group is eligible for the UK corporation tax substantial shareholdings exemption. This results in the capital gain from any disposals of UK investments where  
the Group has an equity stake greater than 10%, and subject to certain other tests, being free of corporation tax. 

Tax is therefore based on the profits in the Management services business as relieved by losses incurred in the Group’s other UK trading activities. Loss relief may  
not absorb the tax in relation to all of the profits and where this occurs tax is provided on the basis of the estimated effective tax rate for the full year.

    2013 2012
    £ £

Current tax:

Corporation tax    – –

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of timing differences    – –

Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities    – –

    2013 2012
    £ £

Corporation tax

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before tax    (1,030,588) (2,709,285)

Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities at 24% (26%)    (247,341) (704,414)

Factors affecting charge:

Capital allowances for period in excess of depreciation    (3,116) (3,096)

Disallowable expenses    (9,798) 11,650

Change in fair value of investments    69,120 349,979

Share based payments    16,972 38,079

Unutilised losses carried forward    174,163 307,802

Tax charge/(credit) for year    – –

The estimated value of the deferred tax asset not recognised, measured at a standard rate of 23% (2012: 24%) is £1,885,678 (2012: £4,279,479). Deferred tax assets 
relate to unutilised tax losses. No deferred tax liability is provided for any valuation uplifts due to the substantial shareholder exemption or where this may not be 
available due to the availability of unutilised tax losses. The deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the Financial Statements as the Directors consider there 
to be sufficient uncertainty surrounding the reversal of the underlying temporary differences. The deferred tax asset would be recovered if there were future taxable 
profits from which the trading losses could be deducted.
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11 Earnings/(loss) per share
The basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated on an after tax loss of £1,030,588 (2012: £2,709,285). In accordance with IAS 33 Earnings per share, 
1) the “basic” weighted average number of ordinary shares calculation excludes shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) as these are treated as 
treasury shares and 2) the “diluted” weighted average number of ordinary shares calculation excludes potentially dilutive ordinary shares from instruments that could 
be converted. Share options are potentially dilutive where the exercise price is less than the average market price during the year. Due to the losses in 2013 and 2012, 
share options are non-dilutive for the respective years and therefore the diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share. 
 
    2013 2012
    £ £

Profit/(loss) for the financial year    (1,030,588) (2,709,285)

    Number Number
    of shares of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares    40,697,564 34,510,569

Weighted average number of ESOT shares    (113,259) (113,259)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares – basic    40,584,305 34,397,310

Effect of potential dilutive share options    – –

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares – diluted    40,584,305 34,397,310

Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic and diluted (pence per share)    (2.54) (7.88)

12 Investments
Non-controlled investments

  Non-current Non-current Current Total
  assets assets assets assets
  Unquoted Unquoted Unquoted Unquoted
  Equity Debt Debt Equity/Debt
  investment investment investment investment
  £ £ £ £

At 1 May 2011  2,360,811 – – 2,360,811

Additions  – 222,523 – 222,523

Interest  –  10,913 – 10,913

At 30 April 2012  2,360,811 233,436 – 2,594,247

Transfer from trade and other receivables  – – 509,337 509,337

Transfer  – (233,436) 233,436 –

Post transfers  2,360,811 – 742,773 3,103,584

Additions  – – 320,547 320,547

Fair value gain  – – 514,400 514,400

Interest  – – 22,252 22,252

At 30 April 2013  2,360,811 – 1,599,972 3,960,783

Non-controlled investments relates to the Group’s investment in Geomerics. Following the Group’s focus on specialist medtech, this investment is non-core.

Investments are made in equity and/or in the form of debt (loans) and are designated on initial recognition as financial assets at fair value through the income 
statement. Loans are normally repayable or convertible into equity and may be interest bearing. Certain loans made during the year carried preferential conversion 
terms and rights, which resulted in a fair value gain. A short term loan was transferred from trade and other receivables to debt investment.

There have been no external funding events during the year to determine a new fair value and the company’s sales are not yet predictable enough to use some  
form of discounted cash flow or other valuation method that would be acceptable under the private equity guidelines. 

Under the Group’s accounting policy, where a fair value cannot be estimated reliably the investment is reported at the carrying value at the previous reporting  
date unless there is objective evidence that the investment has since been impaired.
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12 Investments continued
The Board has considered a number of factors in determining whether there is evidence that the fair value of an investment has been impaired since its last valuation. 
These factors have included 1) the positives and negatives in the progress of the investment 2) the current and forecast financial situation of the investment and its 
ability to make timely sales 3) a view on valuation of the Company 4) the original funding environment and the current funding environment and 5) the performance 
of various small cap and tech indices including AIM, Techmark and NASDAQ Stock Market in the relevant period. 

Note 15 provides information on the fair value hierarchy of financial assets.

Other receivables

    2013 2012
    £ £

At 1 May    153,927 1,500,000

Change in fair value    – (1,346,073)

Settlement receipt    (153,927) –

At 30 April    – 153,927

ANGLE’s former non-controlled investment Acolyte Biomedica (medical diagnostics/MRSA detection) was sold in February 2007 with possible deferred consideration 
being designated as Other receivables. During the year a settlement payment was agreed and received, together with interest and costs.

Group investments
Non-controlled investments  

  Class of Holding
 Principal activity share held %

Geomerics Limited(1) Computer graphics Ordinary & 30.82

 Lighting for computer games B Preference

(1)   The effective Group holdings in individual investments are shown before a) the effects of any dilutive share options or convertible loans and b) additional ANGLE holdings from 
convertible loans or warrants within the individual investments.

The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the results of these investments for the last relevant financial year were as follows:

   Date of Net assets/ Profit/(loss)
   financial  (liabilities) for the year
   statements £ £

Geomerics Limited   28/02/2012 (398,412) (1,120,973)

Recent financial statements are not always publicly available and management information is deemed commercially sensitive. Net assets/(liabilities) and profit/(loss) 
figures are based on publicly available information – results statements or the most recently filed Accounts with Companies House.
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Controlled investments
The Group has investments in the following subsidiaries:

  Class of Holding
Company Name Principal activity share held %

ANGLE Technology Limited* Management services Ordinary 100.00

ANGLE Technology Ventures Ltd Investments Ordinary 100.00

NeuroTargets Limited(1)(2) Drug discovery Ordinary  65.39

Novocellus Limited(1) IVF diagnostics Ordinary 91.98

Parsortix Inc(1) Cancer diagnostics Common & Preferred 90.53

Parsortix Limited*(3) Supports Parsortix Inc Ordinary 100.00

Progeny bioVentures Limited Investments – SPV Ordinary 96.50

All “Limited” companies incorporated and registered in England & Wales. All “Inc” companies incorporated and registered in the US.

* subsidiary held directly

(1)   The effective Group holdings in individual investments are shown before a) the effects of any dilutive share options or convertible loans and b) additional ANGLE holdings  
from convertible loans or warrants within the individual investments.

(2)  The holding shown is before the minority interest in Progeny bioVentures Limited. The holding after the minority interest would be 65.01%.
(3)  Formerly known as ANGLE Ventures Limited.

13 Property, plant and equipment

    Fixtures,
  Computer Laboratory fittings & 
  equipment equipment equipment Total
  £ £ £ £

Cost

At 1 May 2011  86,017 89,332 45,443 220,792

Additions  6,972 8,955 – 15,927

Disposals  (29,763) – – (29,763)

Exchange movements  15 (169) – (154)

At 30 April 2012  63,241 98,118 45,443 206,802

Additions  5,243 134,258 – 139,501

Disposals  (23,737) – – (23,737)

Exchange movements  84 917 – 1,001

At 30 April 2013  44,831 233,293 45,443 323,567

Depreciation

At 1 May 2011  79,148 89,332 43,789 212,269

Charge for the year  5,733 745 396 6,874

Disposals  (29,553) – – (29,553)

Exchange movements  (8) (14) – (22)

At 30 April 2012  55,320 90,063 44,185 189,568

Charge for the year  5,425 13,109 545 19,079

Disposals  (23,737) – – (23,737)

Exchange movements  29 204 – 233

At 30 April 2013  37,037 103,376 44,730 185,143

Net book value

At 30 April 2013  7,794 129,917 713 138,424

At 30 April 2012  7,921 8,055 1,258 17,234
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14 Intangible assets

  Intellectual Computer  Product 
 property software Goodwill development Total
 £ £ £ £ £

Cost or deemed cost

At 1 May 2011 645,843 17,097 98,380 – 761,320

Deemed disposals (124,168) (1,664) – – (125,832)

Exchange movements 799 – – – 799

At 30 April 2012 522,474 15,433 98,380 – 636,287

Additions – 2,567 – 972,918 975,485

Disposals – (5,842) – – (5,842)

Exchange movements 1,267 – – – 1,267

At 30 April 2013 523,741 12,158 98,380 972,918 1,607,197

Amortisation and impairment

At 1 May 2011 204,168 15,745 98,380 – 318,293

Charge for the year – 703 – – 703

Deemed disposals (124,168) (1,664) – – (125,832)

Impairment 32,000 – – – 32,000

At 30 April 2012 112,000 14,784 98,380 – 225,164

Charge for the year – 1,456 – 18,423 19,879

Disposals – (5,842) – – (5,842)

Impairment 288,000 – – – 288,000

Exchange movements – – – 241 241

At 30 April 2013 400,000 10,398 98,380 18,664 527,442

Net book value

At 30 April 2013 123,741 1,760 – 954,254 1,079,755

At 30 April 2012 410,474 649 – – 411,123

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may 
not be recoverable. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of “value in use”. The key assumptions to assess value in use are the estimated useful economic 
life, future revenues, cash flows and the discount rate to determine the net present value of these cash flows. Where value in use exceeds the carrying value then no 
impairment is made; where value in use is less than the carrying value then an impairment charge is made.

Amortisation and impairment charges are charged to operating costs in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

“Product development” relates to internally generated assets that were capitalised during the period in accordance with IAS 38 Intangible Assets. Capitalised product 
development costs are directly attributable costs comprising cost of materials, specialist contractor costs, labour, overheads and patent costs. Product development 
costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives commencing when a new product is in commercial production. The carrying value is reviewed for impairment 
annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Development costs not meeting the IAS 38 criteria 
for capitalisation continue to be expensed through the Income Statement as incurred.

“Intellectual property” in NeuroTargets has been fully impaired in the period as the research and development programme is not currently progressing.
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15 Financial risk management
Overview
The Group is exposed, through its normal operations, to a number of financial risks, the most significant of which are credit, liquidity and investment (market) risks. 
Controlled investments are consolidated into the Group results and the risks are managed as two specific groups – ANGLE excluding Controlled investments and 
Controlled investments. 

The Group’s financial instruments comprise cash, trade receivables and trade payables which arise directly from its operations, and from time to time treasury 
deposits, overdrafts and finance leases.

In addition the Group holds an investment portfolio comprising equity and debt investments (listed and/or unlisted) in technology based companies.

It is the Group’s policy that no trading in financial derivatives shall be undertaken.

Financial assets
Financial assets of the Group comprise cash at bank and in hand as well as treasury deposits, trade, other receivables and non-current and current investments  
(see Note 12). It is the Group’s policy to place surplus cash resources on deposit at both floating and fixed term deposit rates of interest with the objective of 
maintaining a balance between accessibility of funds and competitive rates of return. Fixed term deposits are for varying periods ranging from one to six months,  
to the extent that cash flow can be reasonably predicted.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities of the Group in the normal course of business comprise trade and other payables, overdraft facilities and finance leases (neither currently in use), 
and certain controlled investments may enter into loan and/or convertible loan agreements. It is the Group’s policy to use various financial instruments with floating 
and fixed rates of interest with the objective of maintaining a balance between continuity of funding, matching the liability with the use of the asset, and finding 
flexible funding options for a reasonable charge. 

The Group currently does not utilise overdraft facilities. The Group excluding controlled investments has no long term borrowings or undrawn committed borrowing 
facilities. Controlled investments may have loan and convertible loan agreements. The Group is currently not exposed to any interest rate risk on its financial liabilities.

Liquidity risk
The principal risk to which the Group is exposed is liquidity risk, that is the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group seeks  
to manage liquidity through planning, forecasting, careful cash management and managing the operational and investment risk.

The nature of the Group’s activities means it finances its operations through earnings, the issue of new shares to investors and equity disposals. The principal cash 
requirements are in relation to funding operating companies, investments and meeting working capital requirements. 

Early stage companies typically experience significant negative cash flows. Investments may be unable to obtain financing due to lack of operational progress or 
market conditions and may need to be wound-up. The Group may feel it appropriate to provide additional investment and/or management time to support these 
companies further. Adverse market conditions may also delay liquidity events, thereby requiring additional investment.

ANGLE may also find it difficult to raise additional capital to develop its core business depending on progress with meeting milestones and market conditions. 

Sensitivity analysis examining a small percentage increase and decrease in liquidity is of limited use and accordingly no analysis has been shown.

Capital risk management
The Group defines the capital that it manages as the Group’s total equity. The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to:

• safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
• have available the necessary financial resources to allow the Group to deliver benefits from its operational activities and investments.
• optimise the return to investors based on the level of risk undertaken.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares or sell assets, pay dividends or return capital to shareholders.



48 ANGLE plc 
Annual Report & Accounts 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

15 Financial risk management continued
The Group’s capital and equity ratios are shown in the table below:

    2013 2012
    £’000 £’000

Total equity attributable to owners of the parent    7,097 4,582

Total assets    7,523 5,186

Equity ratio    94.3% 88.4%

Investment (price) risk
Equity investments are held to 1) achieve capital growth in their value with the intention of subsequent disposal at a profit, or 2) build and keep as a trading 
subsidiary where the revenue opportunity is significant or where significant milestone payments and royalty income streams are possible. The main risks arising 
from these equity investments are technological risk, market risk and financial risk. The Group seeks to manage and mitigate such risk by using investment appraisal 
processes and monitoring procedures with regular reports made to the Board on the status of investments. For trading subsidiaries and investments ANGLE typically 
has a Board representative helping in an advisory capacity.

The Group’s investments are exposed to significant market risk. Valuations and disposals of unquoted investments depend on a combination of market factors, including 
investor sentiment, availability of liquidity and funding and appetite for specific asset classes, as well as the specific performance of each underlying investment.

The Group considers the impact of investment risk to be material to its Financial Statements as the results are highly sensitive to any increase or decrease in the price 
of investments and to their accounting treatment. An investment’s fair value may change significantly on the achievement of milestones, funding events or strong or 
poor performance, particularly with regard to sales. Controlled investments may become non-controlled investments with the investment recognised at fair value for 
the first time. The small portfolio of investments exacerbates the sensitivity to any changes. Traditional sensitivity analysis examining a small percentage increase and 
decrease is of limited use given the small portfolio and accordingly no analysis has been shown.

Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk, excluding debt instruments with investments (see below), is attributable to its cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables. The Group 
seeks to mitigate its credit risk on cash and cash equivalents through banking with banks with the highest credit ratings. The risk for trade receivables is that a 
customer fails to pay for goods or services received and the Group suffers a financial loss. The Group’s objective with respect to credit risk is to minimise the risk of 
default by customers. The majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from contracts with the public sector and therefore the credit risk is considered to be relatively 
low. For private and overseas clients Group policy is to assess the credit quality of each customer and where appropriate seek part-payment in advance. 

The Group’s credit risk on debt instruments with investments is by its nature high as the investments carry a high level of risk and mitigation measures are not  
always possible.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is represented by the carrying amount of the assets described above.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities have the following interest rate profile:

 Fixed Floating Interest 2013 Fixed Floating Interest 2012
 rate(1) rate(2) free Total rate(1) rate(2) free Total
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets:

Investments (non-current) – – 2,361 2,361 223 – 2,372 2,595

Other receivables (non-current) – – – – – – 154 154

Investments (current) 1,567 – 33 1,600 – – – –

Trade and other receivables 149 – 101 250 – – 778 778

Cash and cash equivalents 1,623 175 30 1,828 500 603 18 1,121

Total financial assets 3,339 175 2,525 6,039 723 603 3,322 4,648

Financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables – – 174 174 – – 281 281

Loans and borrowings – – 132 132 – – 132 132

Total financial liabilities – – 306 306 – – 413 413

(1)   Fixed rate investments and certain trade receivables in sterling earned interest at rates of 0%, 5% or 10% (2012: 10%). Fixed rate cash deposits in sterling earned interest at rates 
between 0.15% and 1.25% (2012: 0.25% and 1.25%). 

(2)    Floating rate cash deposits in Sterling earned interest at rates between 0.06% and 0.1% (2012: 0.06% and 0.10%). The weighted average interest rate on Sterling cash deposit for this 
period was between 0.02% and 0.10% (2012: 0.06% and 0.18%). 
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The Group does not consider the impact of interest rate risk to be material to its results or operations.

The primary interest rate risk impact relates to movements in underlying bank interest rates and the impact on interest received on cash and cash equivalents held  
by the Group with corporate banks. If interest rates had been 1% higher on floating rate cash deposits then finance income would have been increased by £2,333 
(2012: £9,613).

There is currently no interest rate risk on financial liabilities as the Group has no interest bearing loans and borrowings. 

With the exception of £2,360,811 (2012: £2,360,811) within Investments and £nil (2012: £153,927) within Other receivables, all amounts have maturity dates of less 
than twelve months.

Foreign currency risk
The Group has overseas subsidiaries whose income and expenses are primarily denominated in US dollars. As a result, the Group’s statement of comprehensive 
income and statement of financial position may be affected by movements in the US dollar:Sterling exchange rate.

The majority of the Group’s operating revenues and expenses are in Sterling and US dollars. Sales are priced in Sterling although the Group may have a limited 
amount of revenues denominated in other currencies. Excess exposure, if any, may be managed for all significant foreign currencies using forward currency contracts 
or currency swaps. 

Sensitivity analysis
The impact of a 5% variation in the US dollar rates on the profit/(loss) for the year is as follows:

    2013 2012
    £ £

Profit/(loss) – 5% strengthening    (28,924) (42,581)

Profit/(loss) – 5% weakening    26,170 38,525

Hedging
The Group did not hedge its financial transactions in 2013 or 2012.

Currency profile
The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities have the following currency profile:

    2013   2012
  Sterling US dollar Total Sterling US dollar Total
  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets:

Investments (non-current)  2,361 – 2,361 2,595 – 2,595

Other receivables (non-current)  – – – – 154 154

Investments (current)  1,600 – 1,600 – – –

Trade and other receivables  236 14 250 735 43 778

Cash and cash equivalents  1,804 24 1,828 1,109 12 1,121

Total financial assets  6,001 38 6,039 4,439 209 4,648

Financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables  164 10 174 259 22 281

Loans and borrowings  132 – 132 132 – 132

Total financial liabilities  296 10 306 391 22 413
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15 Financial risk management continued
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
Other than as disclosed, the Directors believe that the fair value and the book value of financial assets and financial liabilities is not materially different. Trade 
payables and receivables have a remaining life of less than one year so their value on the statement of financial position is considered to be a fair approximation  
of fair value. The valuation policy for investments and other receivables is detailed in Note 1.7.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying values shown in the statement of financial position, are as follows:

  Fair value   Total
  through profit  Amortised carrying Fair
  or loss cost value value
  £ £ £ £

30 April 2012

Investments (non-current)  2,360,811 233,436 2,594,247 2,594,247

Other receivables  153,927 – 153,927 153,927

Trade and other receivables  – 778,239 778,239 778,239

Cash and cash equivalents  – 1,120,806 1,120,806 1,120,806

Trade and other payables  – (281,047) (281,047) (281,047)

Convertible and other loans  – (131,751) (131,751) (131,751)

30 April 2013

Investments (non-current)  2,360,811 – 2,360,811 2,360,811

Investments (current)  771,600 828,372 1,599,972 1,599,972

Trade and other receivables  – 250,087 250,087 250,087

Cash and cash equivalents  – 1,827,690 1,827,690 1,827,690

Trade and other payables  – (174,590) (174,590) (174,590)

Convertible and other loans  – (131,751) (131,751) (131,751)

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities
The Group classifies financial assets using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of inputs used in making fair value assessments. The level in the fair  
value hierarchy within which a financial asset is classified is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to that asset’s fair value measurement. 
The fair value hierarchy includes the following three levels:

Level 1  Valued using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
Level 2  Valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs (other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities), such as 

price of recent investment
Level 3  Valued by reference to valuation techniques that are not based on observable market data (See Note 1.7 for valuation methodology)

  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
  £ £ £ £

Financial assets recognised at fair value

At 30 April 2012 

Investments (non-current)  – 2,360,811 – 2,360,811

Other receivables  – 153,927 – 153,927

Total  – 2,514,738 – 2,514,738

At 30 April 2013 

Investments (non-current)  – – 2,360,811 2,360,811

Investments (current)  – 771,600 – 771,600

Total  – 771,600 2,360,811 3,132,411

In the current year there was a transfer from Level 2 to Level 3 reflecting the fact that the price of the investment was no longer a recent event and therefore the 
original investment was classified as Level 3. New investment recognised at fair value is in the form of convertible debt with a face value that represents an observable 
input and is therefore classified as Level 2.
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16 Inventories

    2013 2012
    £ £

Work in progress    51,249 –

Finished goods    11,011 –

    62,260 –

17 Trade and other receivables

    2013 2012
    £ £

Current assets:

Trade receivables    230,660 260,904

Other receivables    19,427 7,998

Prepayments and accrued income    203,834 110,208

Loan to related party (Note 25)    – 509,337

    453,921 888,447

In the prior year it was anticipated that the short term loan to a related party, which has some characteristics of a convertible loan, would be repaid within 12 months 
and it was therefore classified as a current asset. As a result of a change in funding circumstances with the related party, the short term loan was reclassified from 
trade and other receivables to debt investment (Note 12).

The standard credit period allowed for trade receivables is 30 days, although this may be extended such that invoices become payable after completion of a key 
milestone.
 
Age profile of trade receivables  

    2013 2012
    £ £

Not past due    229,460 253,067

0 – 30 days past due    1,200 7,577

30 – 90 days past due    – 260

Greater than 90 days past due    – –

Total    230,660 260,904

The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade and other receivables to approximate their fair value. Certain trade receivables from related parties earn interest 
after an interest free period. All other receivables are unsecured and interest free, unless past their due date where interest may be charged.

18 Controlled investments – loans (borrowings)

    2013 2012
    £ £

Non-current liabilities:

Unsecured convertible loan (interest free)    22,067 22,067

Unsecured loan (interest free)    109,684 109,684

    131,751 131,751

The interest free unsecured convertible loan has a maturity date based on either a change of control or a finance round above a certain threshold or a long stop date. 
On the occurrence of such an event the loan is convertible into equity or repayable at the option of a lender majority. In certain circumstances (default events) it 
becomes repayable. 

The interest free unsecured loan has a maturity date based on either a change of control or a finance round above a certain threshold or a long stop date. On the 
occurrence of such an event the loan is repayable at the option of the holder. In certain circumstances (default events) it becomes repayable. There is no obligation to 
repay the loan unless and until all monies owed under associated convertible loans have been repaid in full or otherwise discharged or released.
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19 Trade and other payables

    2013 2012
    £ £

Current liabilities:

Trade payables    174,262 251,418

Other taxes and social security costs    51,189 78,349

Other payables    328 29,629

Accruals and deferred income    378,886  288,177

    604,665 647,573

Other accruals includes amounts for professional fees, accrued vacation and salary (Note 25). Deferred income includes amounts for pre-billed revenues and grants.
 
20 Share capital
The share capital of the Company is shown below:

    2013 2012
    £ £

Allotted, called up and fully paid

45,243,059 (2012: 37,824,559) Ordinary shares of 10p each    4,524,306 3,782,456

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

The Company issued 2,892,500 new Ordinary shares with a nominal value of £0.10 at an issue price of £0.40 per share in a placing of shares, realising proceeds  
of £1.1 million, net of costs. Shares were admitted to trading on AIM in September 2012.

The Company issued 4,526,000 new Ordinary shares with a nominal value of £0.10 at an issue price of £0.50 per share in a placing of shares, realising proceeds  
of £2.2 million, net of costs. Shares were admitted to trading on AIM in February 2013.

21 Share based payments
The key disclosures that enable the user of the Financial Statements to understand the nature and extent of share based payment charges through the statement  
of comprehensive income relate to ANGLE plc and not to the controlled investments.

The share based payment charge for the Company Employee Share Option Schemes was £70,718 (2012: £146,457). The share based payment charge for controlled 
investments was £nil (2012: £nil).

The share based payment charge for options awarded to advisors was £nil (2012: £7,596) and has been charged against the share premium account.

Company – Share Option Schemes 
The Company operates Share Option Schemes as a means of encouraging ownership and aligning interests of staff and external shareholders. These are a key part 
of the remuneration package and granted at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee taking into account the need to motivate, retain and recruit high calibre 
executives.

Each Scheme is governed by a specific set of rules and administered by the Directors of the Company. Options are granted at the market price of the shares on the 
date of grant. Options are granted under a service condition and/or a non-market performance condition and/or a market performance condition (such as a target 
share price). If the performance conditions are not met, the options do not vest and will lapse at the date specified at the time of grant. Options are forfeited if the 
employee leaves the Group before the awards vest unless the conditions under which they leave are such that they are considered to be a “good leaver”; in this case 
some of their options may remain exercisable for a limited period of time, subject to any performance condition having been met. Options lapse if they are not 
exercised by the date they cease to be exercisable. Share option agreements in place require the employee to reimburse the Company for the cost of employer’s 
National Insurance Contributions, and other equivalent taxes, and accordingly the Company does not accrue for such taxes that would otherwise be due on share 
option gains. 
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Approved and Unapproved Share Option Scheme #1 (Closed 28 July 2012)
Approved and Unapproved options are not exercisable until three years after the date of grant and cease to be exercisable after seven years from the date of grant. 

The movement in the number of employee share options is set out below:

  2013 2013 2012 2012
  Number Weighted Number Weighted
  of share average of share average
  options exercise options exercise
  # price (p) # price (p)

Outstanding at 1 May  1,587 126.00 1,277,247 85.09

During the year 

 Cancelled  – – (981,850) 84.69

 Lapsed  (1,587) 126.00 (293,810) 86.21

 Forfeited  – – – –

Outstanding at 30 April  – – 1,587 126.00

Capable of being exercised at 30 April  – – 1,587 126.00

The options outstanding at 30 April 2012 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3 months. 

EMI Share Option Scheme #1 and Unapproved Share Option Scheme #2
The Company has an Enterprise Management Incentive (EMI) Share Option Scheme and an Unapproved Share Option Scheme. Share options are granted under a 
service condition and/or a non-market performance condition and/or a market performance condition. Options cease to be exercisable after ten years from the date 
of grant or on an earlier specified date. 

The movement in the number of employee share options is set out below:

  2013 2013 2012 2012
  Number Weighted Number Weighted
  of share average of share average
  options exercise options exercise
  # price (p) # price (p)

Outstanding at 1 May  3,766,000 50.98 – –

During the year 

 Granted  – – 3,766,000 50.98

 Replacement – cancelled  (969,657) 55.97 – –

 Replacement – issued  969,657 55.97 – –

Outstanding at 30 April  3,766,000 50.98 3,766,000 50.98

Capable of being exercised at 30 April  1,101,998 25.75 725,000 25.75

The options outstanding at 30 April 2013 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of eight years and five months (2012: nine years and five months).
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21 Share based payments continued
During the year a number of options were exchanged between the Share Option Schemes, in accordance with the rules, replacing previously granted Unapproved 
options with EMI options. The Replacement Options involved the same number of ordinary shares with the same exercise price, vesting conditions and dates as the 
share options they replaced.

The Company uses a Trinomial option pricing model as the basis to determine the fair value of the Company’s share options.

The following assumptions are used in the model to determine the fair value of share options at the respective date of grant that are still outstanding at  
30 April 2013:

  Share price   Life of   Outstanding
 Exercise at date Expected Risk free option Expected Vesting share
Date of grant price (£) of grant (£) volatility interest rate  (years) dividends conditions options

30 August 2011 0.2575 0.2575 45.00% 1.06% 3.5 Nil (1) 1,475,353

18 November 2011 0.7550 0.7550 40.00% 0.62% 2.5 Nil (2) 1,320,990

5 November 2012 0.2575 0.3750 40.00% 0.35% 3.0 Nil (1) 380,647

5 November 2012 0.7550 0.3750 40.00% 0.23% 2.0 Nil (2) 589,010

Expected volatility was derived from observation of the volatility of quoted shares in similar sectors to the Company and observation of the historic volatility of the 
company’s shares, adjusted for any unusual historic events and expected changes to future volatility. The expected life used in the model is based on management’s 
best estimate taking into account the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, behavioural conditions and expected future events.

The share options issued were subject to both performance and service (employment) conditions:

(1)  Vesting is subject to a) a performance condition that the share price together with any dividend payments has risen by at least 50% from the market price on  
30 August 2011, and b) a service condition with options vesting over a three year period.

(2)  Vesting is subject to a) the performance conditions that (i) the Company’s share price must have increased to £2 and (ii) the Parsortix separation device must 
have been demonstrated to successfully capture circulating tumour cells (CTCs) from cancer patient blood, and b) a service condition with options vesting over 
a three year period. 

Once all performance and service conditions have been met the employee becomes unconditionally entitled to the options and they are capable of exercise. Based  
on these performance and service conditions a number of options have vested and become capable of exercise.

Controlled investments
Controlled investments individually operate Unapproved, or equivalent, Share Option Schemes and restricted share schemes as a means of attracting start-up 
management, encouraging ownership and aligning interests of staff with shareholders. Share options are a part of the remuneration package and are granted at the 
discretion of the individual controlled entity boards taking into account the need to recruit, motivate and retain high calibre executives. 

Controlled investments unapproved Share Option Schemes are typically 1) granted at market value 2) have vesting and/or performance conditions and 3) lapse after  
a period of 10 years from the date of grant. There are no legal or constructive obligations to repurchase or settle options in cash.

Market prices do not exist for such early stage controlled investments and, in the absence of market prices, fair value is estimated using a valuation technique to value 
the instrument on the measurement date in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties.
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22 ESOT shares

    2013 2012
    £ £

At 1 May    102,172 307,987

Change in accounting estimate*    – (205,815)

At 30 April    102,172 102,172

*  In the prior year the basis for estimating the remaining cost of shares held was changed from using the original cost less the market value of shares utilised at the date of disposal, to a 
remaining cost based on the weighted average purchase cost. 

Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) shares are ANGLE plc shares held by the ANGLE Employee Trust. At 30 April 2013 the Trust held 113,259 shares (2012: 
113,259 shares). The market value of these shares at 30 April 2013 was £57,196 (2012: £69,088). Shares purchased by the ANGLE ESOT are used (disposed) to assist 
in meeting the obligations under employee remuneration schemes. 

23 Contingent liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2013. 

Following ORIGIO’s decision to withdraw from the EmbryoSure® study the Group has been released from the commitments the Group made to support Novocellus 
with this study, as detailed in Note 22 Contingent Liabilities in the Annual Report and Accounts 2012. 

24 Guarantees and other financial commitments
The Group has operating lease commitments for office accommodation and a specialist laboratory on leases of generally less than one year with monthly rental 
payments and short notice periods.

    2013 2012
    £ £

Minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating leases on property expiring:

Not later than one year    76,610 76,569

The Group also has a number of retainers with professional advisors which can be terminated on short notice periods. 

During the year, Parsortix entered into certain commitments in relation to the development of its cancer diagnostic product. In aggregate these gave rise to financial 
commitments of up to £234,680 over the next two years.

In 2010 the Group entered into an agreement with Geomerics Limited to put £62,500 into an Escrow Account to facilitate the provision of a personal guarantee  
for an Enterprise Finance Guarantee (EFG) Loan to Geomerics Limited. The final repayment for the EFG Loan repayment was made in October 2012 and the  
Escrow released.

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption from audit introduced during the year for a number of its subsidiary undertakings in accordance with section 
479A of the Companies Act 2006. This relates to ANGLE Technology Ventures Limited and Parsortix Limited. ANGLE plc has provided a statutory guarantee over the 
subsidiary’s liabilities in accordance with section 479C of the Companies Act 2006.

Other than these, the Group has no contractual commitments to provide financial support to its investments. 
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25 Related party transactions
Transactions between subsidiaries within the Group, including controlled investments, are not disclosed as they are eliminated on consolidation. 

The Group provided executive management and financial and administrative support services to, and incurred expenditure on behalf of, non-controlled investments  
as follows:

    2013 2012
    £ £

Geomerics Limited    78,162 78,860

At the reporting date amounts were due from investments as follows:

    2013 2012
    £ £

Geomerics Limited

 – Trade receivables    148,822 55,356

During the year ANGLE, together with other shareholders, entered into an unsecured convertible bridging loan finance agreement with Geomerics for £771,600 which 
has been treated as a debt investment (Note 12). In addition ANGLE provided Geomerics with temporary working capital support funding of £63,347. As a result of a 
change in circumstances, the temporary working capital support funding provided in the prior year was reclassified from trade and other receivables to debt investment.

In the prior year, ANGLE, together with other shareholders, entered into an interest bearing unsecured convertible loan note agreement with Geomerics for £233,436, 
which has been treated as a debt investment (Note 12). In addition ANGLE provided the Company with temporary working capital support funding of £509,337 
(Note 17). 

Directors’ interests – related party interests and transactions
Apart from the interests disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 22 to 24 and below, none of the Directors had any interest at any time during the year ended 
30 April 2013 in the share capital of the Company or its subsidiaries. 

Ian Griffiths holds an interest in NeuroTargets as a result of purchasing 938 shares for £15,008 in January 2003 representing 0.5% of the issued share capital at  
30 April 2013. Ian Griffiths also participated in a convertible loan agreement in June 2007 for £1,218.

At the reporting date £135,236 of remuneration (2012: £38,163) was due to Andrew Newland (of which £84,032 has been paid since the year-end) and £4,730  
of remuneration (2012: £29,629) was due to Ian Griffiths (of which £4,730 has been paid since the year-end).

Brian Howlett entered into a consultancy contract with effect from 7 January 2013 to provide advice in relation to Parsortix outside of his normal Board 
responsibilities.

No other Director had a material interest in a contract, other than a service contract, with the Company or its subsidiaries, or investments during the year.
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Company Balance Sheet
As at 30 April 2013 Company number 04985171

    2013 2012
   Note £ £

Fixed assets

Investments in subsidiary undertakings   C2 2,822,262 2,751,544

Current assets

Debtors – due after one year   C3  9,752,701 7,118,345

Cash at bank and in hand    1,623,013 931,019

Net assets    14,197,976 10,800,908

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital   C4 4,524,306 3,782,456

Share premium account   C4 18,414,265 15,829,765

Share based payment reserve   C4 211,746 141,779

Profit and loss reserve   C4 (8,952,341) (8,953,092)

Shareholders’ funds – equity interests   C5 14,197,976 10,800,908

The Financial Statements on pages 57 to 60 were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 4 October 2013 and signed on its behalf by:

I F Griffiths A D W Newland
Director Director
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 April 2013

C1 Accounting policies
C1.1 Accounting convention and compliance with accounting standards
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable United Kingdom 
accounting standards. A summary of the more important accounting policies which have been applied consistently throughout the year are set out below.

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the holding Company’s Profit and Loss Account has not been included in these Financial Statements.  
The profit for the financial year was £nil (2012: £nil).

As permitted by FRS 1 Cash Flow Statements, no Cash Flow Statement for the Company has been included on the grounds that the Group includes the Company  
in its own published Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 29 – Financial Instruments: Disclosures, not to prepare a financial instruments note as the information  
is available in the published Financial Statements of the Group. 

C1.2 Fixed Asset Investments
Fixed asset investments are held at cost less any provision for diminution in value and are held for long term investment purposes.

C1.3 Loans to subsidiary undertakings
Intercompany loans are provided to operating subsidiaries and are held at cost less any provision to reduce carrying value to its currently estimated recoverable 
amount.

C1.4 Share based payments
The Share option schemes allow Group employees to acquire shares of the Company, subject to certain criteria. In accordance with FRS 20 Share-based payments,  
the fair value of options granted is recognised as an expense of employment and the cost is borne by the appropriate subsidiary receiving the benefit of the 
employees’ services. The fair value is treated as a capital contribution and added to the cost of the Company’s investments in its subsidiary undertakings and a 
corresponding credit is made to reserves. The accounting treatment required by FRS 20 is consistent with that applied under IFRS 2 in the Group’s Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

C2 Investments

    2013 2012
    £ £

Shares in subsidiaries

At 1 May    2,751,544 2,605,087

Additions    70,718 146,457

At 30 April    2,822,262 2,751,544

Additions represent share based payment transactions (Note C1.4). 

Details of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings at 30 April 2013 are shown in Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements along with other interests held 
indirectly through subsidiary undertakings. 



59ANGLE plc 
Annual Report & Accounts 2013

C3 Debtors falling due after more than one year

    2013 2012
    £ £

Amounts owed by Group undertakings

Cost

At 1 May    17,805,962 15,917,285

Additions    2,634,356 1,888,677

At 30 April    20,440,318 17,805,962

Provision

At 1 May    10,687,617 10,687,617

Additions    – –

At 30 April    10,687,617 10,687,617

Net book value

At 30 April    9,752,701 7,118,345

ANGLE plc provides a centralised treasury function to trading subsidiaries. The amounts due from Group undertakings are interest free, unsecured and have no fixed 
date of repayment.

The Company’s credit risk is that one of its subsidiaries is unable to repay intercompany amounts owing. The recoverability of the Company’s intercompany receivable 
is considered at each balance sheet date.

The provision reflects the Directors’ view of the potential impact of adverse economic conditions on the long term value of the amounts owed by subsidiary 
undertakings.

C4 Share capital and reserves

    Share based Profit
  Share Share payment and loss
  capital premium reserve reserve
  £ £ £ £

At 1 May 2011  3,043,728 14,126,365 461,931 (9,427,297)

Net proceeds from issue of share capital  738,728 1,710,996

Share based payments   (7,596) 154,053 

Utilised on share schemes    (58,087) 58,087

Release on forfeiture/lapse/cancellation    (416,118) 416,118

At 30 April 2012  3,782,456 15,829,765 141,779 (8,953,092)

Net proceeds from issue of share capital  741,850 2,584,500  

Share based payments    70,718 

Release on forfeiture/lapse    (751) 751

At 30 April 2013  4,524,306 18,414,265 211,746 (8,952,341)

Details of the Company’s share capital and changes in its issued share capital and share premium account can be found in the Consolidated Statement of Changes  
in Equity on page 29 and Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 52.

Details of the Company’s share options schemes and warrants can be found in Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 52 to 54.
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C5 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

    2013 2012
    £ £

Loss for the financial year    – –

Net proceeds from issue of share capital    3,326,350 2,449,724

Share based payments    70,718 146,457

Opening shareholders’ funds    10,800,908 8,204,727

Closing shareholders’ funds    14,197,976 10,800,908

C6 Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses, including auditor’s remuneration, are borne by other Group companies.

C7 Directors’ emoluments and employee information
The only employees of the Company are the Directors; the remuneration of the Directors is borne by Group subsidiary undertakings. Full details of their remuneration 
can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 22 to 24.

C8 Related party transactions
The Company has relied on the exemptions given in FRS 8 not to disclose transactions between itself and its wholly-owned subsidiaries that have been eliminated  
on consolidation.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
ANGLE plc

Directors: Registered Office
I F Griffiths (Finance Director) 3 Frederick Sanger Road
B Howlett (Non-Executive Director) The Surrey Research Park
A D W Newland (Chief Executive) Guildford GU2 7YD
D W Quysner CBE (Non-Executive Director)
G R Selvey (Chairman)

Dear Shareholder

Annual General Meeting
You will find included with this document a Notice convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company for 2:00 pm on Thursday 31 October 2013 at which the 
following resolutions will be proposed:

1. Resolution 1 to receive and adopt the annual report and accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 30 April 2013.

2. Resolution 2 to re-appoint the auditors of the Company, Baker Tilly, and authorise the Directors to determine their level of remuneration.

3. Resolution 3 to re-appoint as a Director Mr I F Griffiths who is retiring by rotation in accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s Articles of Association and 
who, being eligible, is offering himself for re-appointment.

4. Resolution 4 to re-appoint as a Director Mr B Howlett who is retiring by rotation in accordance with Article 96 of the Company’s Articles of Association and who, 
being eligible, is offering himself for re-appointment.

5. Resolution 5 to re-appoint as a Director Mr A D W Newland who is retiring by rotation in accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s Articles of Association and 
who, being eligible, is offering himself for re-appointment.

6. Resolution 6 to re-appoint as a Director Mr D W Quysner who is retiring by rotation in accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s Articles of Association and 
who, being eligible, is offering himself for re-appointment.

7. Resolution 7 to re-appoint as a Director Mr G R Selvey who is retiring by rotation in accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s Articles of Association and who, 
being eligible, is offering himself for re-appointment.

8. Resolution 8 to grant the Directors authority to allot unissued shares in the capital of the Company up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,508,102.

 Note: the Directors wish to renew their authorisations with respect to the allotment of new shares.

9. Resolution 9 to disapply statutory pre-emption rights.

 Note: the Directors wish to renew their authorisations for the disapplication of the statutory pre-emption rights in respect of the allotment of new shares 
pursuant to rights issues or otherwise for cash, as detailed in the Notice of Annual General Meeting, to enable the Directors to take advantage of opportunities  
as they arise without the need for further shareholder approval.

10. Resolution 10 to grant the Directors authority to purchase issued shares in the capital of the Company up to an aggregate nominal amount of £452,431.

 Note: whilst the Directors have no present intention of purchasing the Company’s shares, the Directors are seeking authorisation as they wish to have the 
flexibility to do so if this was generally in the best interests of the shareholders and (except in the case of purchases intended to satisfy obligations under share 
schemes) the expected effect of the purchase would be to increase earnings per share of the remaining shares.

The authorities requested in items 8, 9 and 10 will expire at the 2014 Annual General Meeting or, if earlier, 31 October 2014.

Action to be taken
A Form of Proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting is enclosed. If you are a holder of shares in the Company you are advised to complete and return the form in 
accordance with the instructions printed on it so as to arrive at the Company's registrars, Capita Registrars (Proxies), 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU as 
soon as possible, but in any event no later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting. The return of the Form of Proxy does not preclude you from attending 
and voting at the Annual General Meeting if you so wish. Shares held in uncertificated form (i.e. in CREST) may be voted through the CREST Proxy Voting Service in 
accordance with the procedures set out in the CREST manual.

Recommendation
Your Directors consider the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to be in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. Accordingly,  
the Directors unanimously recommend shareholders to vote in favour of all the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Yours faithfully

Garth Selvey
Chairman
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(Company number 4985171)

Notice is hereby given that the tenth Annual General Meeting of ANGLE plc ("the Company") will be held at 2:00 pm on Thursday 31 October 2013 at the Surrey 
Technology Centre, 40 Occam Road, the Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7YG for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following resolutions 
of which the resolutions numbered 1 through 8 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions and resolutions numbered 9 and 10 will be proposed as special resolutions:

Ordinary Business
1. TO receive the accounts of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2013, and the reports of the Directors and auditors thereon.

2. TO re-appoint Baker Tilly as auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next general meeting  
of the Company at which accounts are laid and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.

3. TO re-appoint Mr I F Griffiths as a Director who, in accordance with the Articles of Association, is retiring at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,  
offers himself for re-election.

4. TO re-appoint Mr B Howlett as a Director who, in accordance with the Articles of Association, is retiring at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,  
offers himself for re-election.

5. TO re-appoint Mr A D W Newland as a Director who, in accordance with the Articles of Association, is retiring at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, 
offers himself for re-election.

6. TO re-appoint Mr D W Quysner as a Director who, in accordance with the Articles of Association, is retiring at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, 
offers himself for re-election.

7. TO re-appoint Mr G R Selvey as a Director who, in accordance with the Articles of Association, is retiring at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,  
offers himself for re-election.

Special Business
8. THAT, for the purposes of section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 ("the Act"), the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to 

exercise all powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company or grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares in the Company up to an 
aggregate nominal amount of £1,508,102 PROVIDED that this authority shall expire (unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general 
meeting) at the earlier of the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or on 31 October 2014 EXCEPT that the Company may, before 
such expiry, make an offer or agreement which would or might require shares to be allotted or the granting of rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, 
shares in the Company after such expiry and the Directors may allot shares and grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares in the Company 
in pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had not expired. This authority shall replace any existing like authority which is 
hereby revoked with immediate effect.

9. THAT, subject to and conditional upon the passing of resolution 8, the Directors be and they are hereby generally empowered, in substitution for all existing 
authorities, pursuant to section 570 of the Act to allot equity securities (within the meaning of section 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority 
conferred by resolution 8 above as if section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to:

(a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with an offer of equity securities open for acceptance for a period fixed by the Directors to holders of equity 
securities on the register of members of the Company on a date fixed by the Directors in proportion (as nearly as may be) to their respective holdings of such 
securities or in accordance with the rights attached thereto but SUBJECT to such exclusions, variations or other arrangements as the Directors may deem 
necessary or expedient to deal with:

i. fractional entitlements;
ii. directions from any holders of shares to deal in some other manner with their respective entitlements;
iii. legal or practical problems arising in any overseas territory;
iv. the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange; or
v. otherwise howsoever;

(b) the allotment of equity securities (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (a) above) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,357,292;

 and the power hereby conferred shall expire (unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on 31 October 2014 or at the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (whichever first occurs) EXCEPT that the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or 
agreement which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such  
offer or agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired. 
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10. THAT, the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 701 of the Act to make market purchases  
(within the meaning of section 693(4) of the Act) of ordinary shares of 10p each in the capital of the Company provided that:

(a) the maximum number of ordinary shares that may be purchased is 4,524,310 (representing approximately 10% of the Company’s issued share capital  
at the date of this notice);

(b) the minimum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for each ordinary share is 10p;

(c) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for each ordinary share is an amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle market 
quotations of an ordinary share of the Company taken from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days immediately preceding  
the day on which the ordinary share is contracted to be purchased;

 and the power hereby conferred shall expire (unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on 31 October 2014 or at the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (whichever first occurs) EXCEPT that the Company may, before such expiry, enter into one or 
more contracts to purchase ordinary shares under which such purchases may be completed or executed wholly or partly after the expiry of this authority and  
may make a purchase of ordinary shares in pursuance of any such contract or contracts.

 
Registered Office By Order of the Board
3 Frederick Sanger Road Ian F Griffiths
The Surrey Research Park Company Secretary
Guildford GU2 7YD    

Dated 4 October 2013

Notes:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and vote instead of him. 
A proxy need not be a member of the Company. The form of proxy for use by members is enclosed. To appoint more than one proxy, the Proxy Form should be 
photocopied and completed for each proxy holder. The proxy holder’s name should be written on the Proxy Form together with the number of shares in relation to 
which the proxy is authorised to act. The box on the Proxy Form must also be ticked to indicate that the proxy instruction is one of multiple instructions being given. 

2. To be valid, an appointment of proxy must be returned to the Company’s Registrars at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting or any adjourned meeting  
by one of the following methods:
• the form of proxy in hard copy duly executed, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed (or a notarially certified 

copy of such power or authority) must be deposited at the Company's registrars, Capita Registrars, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU; or
• in the case of CREST members, by utilising the CREST electronic proxy appointment service in accordance with the procedures set out in Note 4 of this 

document.

 Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude a member from attending and voting in person.

3. Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the Company has specified that, to be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting  
(and for the purpose of determining the number of votes they may cast), members must be entered on the Company's register of members at 6.00pm on  
29 October 2013. Changes to entries on the relevant register of securities after that time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to  
attend or vote at the meeting. 

4. To appoint a proxy or to give or amend an instruction to a previously appointed proxy via the CREST system, the CREST message must be received by the issuer’s 
agent RA10 by at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting or any adjourned meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time  
(as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer’s agent is able to retrieve the message. After this 
time any change of instructions to a proxy appointed through CREST should be communicated to the proxy by other means. EUI does note make available special 
procedures in CREST for any particular messages, therefore normal system timings and limitations will apply in relation to the input of CREST proxy instructions. 
CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST Members who have appointed voting service provider(s) should contact their 
CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) for assistance with appointing proxies via CREST. For further information on CREST procedures, limitations and system 
timings please refer to the CREST Manual. We may treat as invalid a proxy appointment sent by CREST in the circumstances set out in Regulations 35(5) (a) of the 
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001. In any case your proxy form must be received by the Company’s registrars no later than at least 48 hours before the 
time of the meeting or any adjourned meeting.
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Explanatory Notes:

Resolution 1: Report and Accounts
The Directors are required to present to the meeting the audited accounts and the reports of the Directors and the auditors for the financial year ended 30 April 2013.

Resolution 2: Re-appointment of Auditors
The Company is required to appoint auditors at each general meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company, to hold office until the end of the next such 
meeting. This resolution proposes the appointment and, in accordance with standard practice, gives authority to the Directors to determine the remuneration to be 
paid to the auditors.

Resolution 3 to Resolution 7: Re-appointment of Directors
Under article 91 of the Articles of Association of the Company, each Director shall retire from office and will be eligible for reappointment at the third Annual  
General Meeting after the meeting at which he was appointed or last reappointed. Mr I F Griffiths, Mr A D W Newland, Mr D W Quysner and Mr G R Selvey were  
last reappointed as Directors at the 2010 Annual General Meeting and, as such, are required to retire at this Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-election. Under article 96 of the Articles of Association of the Company, a director appointed during the year shall hold office only until the  
next Annual General Meeting when he shall retire from office and will be eligible for reappointment at the Annual General Meeting. Mr B Howlett was appointed 
during the year and, as such, is required to retire at this Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

Resolution 8: Directors' authority to allot Shares
Section 551 of the Act provides that the directors of a company may not allot shares (or grant rights to subscribe for shares or to convert any security into shares)  
in a company unless they have been given prior authorisation for the proposed allotment by ordinary resolution of the company's shareholders or by the Articles  
of Association of a company.

Accordingly, this resolution seeks to grant a new authority under section 551 of the Act to authorise the Directors to allot shares in the Company or grant rights to 
subscribe for, or convert any securities into, shares of the Company and will expire on 31 October 2014 or at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of 
the Company following the passing of this resolution, whichever occurs first.

If passed, resolution 8 would give the Directors authority to allot shares or grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares in the Company up to a 
maximum nominal value of £1,508,102 representing approximately one-third of the Company's nominal value of the issued share capital at the date of this notice. 

Resolution 9: Dis-application of pre-emption rights
Under section 561(1) of the Act, if the Directors wish to allot any of the unissued shares or grant rights over shares for cash (other than pursuant to an employee 
share scheme) they must in the first instance offer them to existing shareholders in proportion to their holdings. There may be occasions, however, when the Directors 
will need the flexibility to finance business opportunities by the issue of shares without a pre-emptive offer to existing shareholders. This cannot be done under the 
Act unless the shareholders have first waived their pre-emption rights. 

Resolution 9 empowers the Directors to allot equity securities for cash other than in accordance with the statutory pre-emption rights up to a maximum nominal 
value of £1,357,292, representing approximately 30% of the Company’s nominal value of the issued share capital at the date of this notice.

Resolution 10: Authority for market purchase
Resolution 10 will permit the Company to purchase up to 4,524,310 ordinary shares of 10 pence each (approximately 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of  
this notice) through the market subject to the pricing limits set out in the resolution and shall expire (unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company  
in general meeting) on 31 October 2014 or at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (whichever first occurs). It is intended to propose 
this as a special resolution.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Continued
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General Information for shareholders in respect of the  
Annual General Meeting
Time of the meeting
The doors will open at 1:50 pm and the AGM will start promptly at 2:00 pm on Thursday 31 October 2013.

The venue
The meeting will be held at the Surrey Technology Centre, 40 Occam Road, The Surrey Research Park, Guildford, Surrey, GU2 7YG.

Directions
Directions to the venue can be found at www.surrey-research-park.com/directions.html or from any website mapping service such as www.multimap.com  
or www.streetmap.co.uk. 

Shareholders’ enquiries
Shareholders’ enquiries will be dealt with by a member of staff.

Questions at the meeting
The Chairman will take questions from shareholders during the meeting relating to the various items of business and resolutions contained in the formal notice of 
meeting included herewith. If you wish to ask a question, please make your way to the question registration area, where there will be somebody to assist you.

Travel details
There is easy access from the A3. Follow the signs to the Royal Surrey Hospital and The Surrey Research Park.

The nearest railway station is Guildford and the venue is located approximately five minutes taxi ride away from the railway station. Alternatively, there is a 10 minute 
bus ride. The bus stop at The Surrey Research Park is approximately 2 minutes walking distance away from the venue.

Refreshments
Coffee, tea and biscuits will be available before the meeting.

Toilet facilities
These will be available at the venue.

Mobile phones
Please ensure mobile phones are switched off for the duration of the meeting.

Smoking
Smoking will not be permitted anywhere in the venue or during the meeting.

Disabled Persons
Arrangements have been made for disabled shareholders. Please follow the signs to the separate areas for disabled car parking. If you have a companion to assist you, 
they will be admitted to the meeting. Guide dogs are also permitted. There are lift facilities available.



66 ANGLE plc 
Annual Report & Accounts 2013

Directors Ian F Griffiths, Finance Director 
 Brian Howlett, Non-executive DirectorANR

 Andrew D W Newland, Chief Executive
 David W Quysner CBE, Non-executive DirectorANR

 Garth R Selvey, ChairmanANR

 A – Audit Committee
 N – Nomination Committee
 R – Remuneration Committee

Secretary Ian F Griffiths

Company number 04985171

Registered office & 3 Frederick Sanger Road
Business address The Surrey Research Park
 Guildford
 Surrey GU2 7YD
 +44 (0)1483 685830
 www.angleplc.com 

Auditor Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP
 25 Farringdon Street
 London
 EC4A 4AB

Nominated Advisor Cenkos Securities plc
and Broker 6.7.8 Tokenhouse Yard
 London EC2R 7AS

Registrar Capita Registrars Ltd
 34 Beckenham Road
 Beckenham
 Kent BR3 4TU

Bank National Westminster Bank 
 PO Box 1
 2nd Floor, G3    
 2 Cathedral Hill   
 Guildford
 Surrey GU1 3ZR

Solicitor Pinsent Masons LLP 
 30 Crown Place 
 Earl Street 
 London EC2A 4ES 

Financial Public Buchanan Communications Ltd 
Relations 107 Cheapside 
 London EC2V 6DN

Company Information



Form of Proxy

Relating to the Annual General Meeting ("the Meeting") of ANGLE plc ("the Company") to be held at 2:00pm on Thursday 31 October 2013 at the  
Surrey Technology Centre, 40 Occam Road, The Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7YG.

I/We (insert name)

of (address)

being (a) holder(s) of (number) ordinary shares of 10p each in the Company hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting or  

(see note 6) 

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 2:00pm on Thursday 31 October 2013 and at any 
adjournment thereof.

My/Our proxy is to vote on the resolutions as follows:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS For Against Withheld

1.  To receive the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2013 and  
to receive the directors’ report and the auditor's report thereon.

2.  To re-appoint Baker Tilly as auditors of the Company and to authorise the directors  
to fix the remuneration of the auditors.   

3.  To re-appoint Mr I F Griffiths as a director of the Company.   

4.  To re-appoint Mr B Howlett as a director of the Company.   

5.  To re-appoint Mr A D W Newland as a director of the Company.   

6.  To re-appoint Mr D W Quysner as a director of the Company.   

7.  To re-appoint Mr G R Selvey as a director of the Company.   

8.  To authorise the directors to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot securities  
up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,508,102.   

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS   

9.  To disapply statutory pre-emption rights.   

10.  To authorise the Company to purchase its own shares.   

In the absence of instructions, the proxy is authorised to vote (or abstain from voting) at his or her discretion on the specified resolutions. The proxy is also authorised 
to vote (or abstain from voting) on any other business which may properly come before the meeting.

Date  Signature

Please mark this box if you are appointing more than one proxy 

NOTES
1.  Please indicate how you wish your proxy to vote on the resolution by inserting "X" in the appropriate space.
2.  The "Withheld" option is to enable you to abstain on any particular resolution. Such a vote is not a vote in law and will not be counted in the votes 'for'  

or 'against' a resolution.
3.  In the case of a corporation, the proxy must be under its common seal (if any) or the hand of its duly authorised agent or officer.  In the case of an individual,  

the proxy must be signed by the appointor or his agent, duly authorised in writing.
4.  This proxy, together with any authority (or a notarially certified copy of such authority) under which it is signed, should reach the Company's registrars,  

Capita Registrars, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU no less than 48 hours before the time for the holding of the Meeting or adjourned Meeting.
5.  You may appoint one or more proxies of your choice to attend, vote and speak at the meeting and any adjournment thereof, provided each proxy is appointed 

to exercise rights in respect of different shares. To appoint more than one proxy (an) additional proxy form(s) may be obtained by contacting the registrars or 
you may photocopy this page indicating on each copy the number of shares in respect of which the proxy is appointed. All forms must be signed and should be 
returned to Capita Registrars in the same envelope.

6.  If you wish to appoint a proxy other than the Chairman of the meeting, delete the words "the Chairman of the meeting or" and insert the name and address  
of your proxy in the space provided.  Please initial the amendment. If you wish your proxy to make comments on your behalf you will need to appoint someone 
other than the Chairman and give them relevant instructions directly. A proxy, who need not be a member of the Company, must attend the meeting in person  
to represent you.

7.  In the case of joint holders, the signature of only one of the joint holders is required but, if more than one joint holder votes at the meeting, the vote of the  
first named on the register of members will be accepted to the exclusion of the other joint holders.

8.  Shares held in uncertificated form (i.e. in CREST) may be voted through the CREST Proxy Voting Service in accordance with the procedures set out in the  
CREST manual.

✂



Please complete this form of Proxy and return in the
enclosed reply paid envelope to:

PXS
34 BECKENHAM ROAD
BECKENHAM
BR3 4TU



Design and production
www.carrkamasa.co.uk

Telephone 020 7566 0190

Printed on Cocoon 50 Silk this paper comes
from sustainable forests and is fully
recyclable and biodegradeable. Made
from 50% recovered waste and 50% virgin
fibre. The manufacturers of the paper and
the printer are accredited with ISO 14001
environmental management system.
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